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ABBREVIATIONS

i 8

In this annual report, the following abbreviations have the
following meanings unless otherwise specified:

“Board”

“Company”

“Directors”

”GI’OUp”

“Hong Kong”

“Listing Rules”

“PRC”

“SEQ”

“Stock Exchange”

"HKS"

“RMB”

“UsD”

u%n

2 NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEREREAT

the board of directors of the
Company

New Provenance Everlasting
Holdings Limited

the directors of the Company
the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

the People’s Republic of China,
excluding Hong Kong, the Macau
Special Administrative Region of the
PRC and Taiwan

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful
currency of Hong Kong

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the
PRC

United States dollars

per cent
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

CrE T

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=+—HLEE

2022 2021
ZEZC T —fF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Operational Results R
Continuing operations FESEER
Revenue & 262,229 601,950
Gross profit EF 10,908 11,066
Loss for the year from continuing operations R EFELE EFNWERNEIE (5,437) (14,990)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation KRB BARILKEEFH
FABE - (23,009)
Loss for the year FREE (5,437) (37,999)
Loss for the year attributable KA B ANELFAEE
to owners of the Company
- from continuing operations —REFESEER (5,452) (14,898)
- from discontinued operation —REERIEKEER - (23,009)
(5,452) (37,907)
As at 31 March
W=A=+—H
2022 2021
ke —E—F
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Financial Position B SRR
Non-current assets JEREEE 55,446 60,610
Current assets MBNE E 569,573 917,156
Current liabilities mEaE (87,318) (451,921)
Net current assets MEEEZE 482,255 465,235
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (15,677) (20,509)
Total equity R mADRE 522,024 505,336
Non-controlling interests El 2 9,053 8,835
Total equity attributable to owners KA B AEILE R AEEE
of the Company 531,077 514,171
Loss per share (HK cent) SREE (BW) (0.026) (0.180)
Key Ratio Analysis FELEE S
Continuing operations FEREE
Gross profit margin EFE 4.2% 1.8%
Net loss margin FUSEis B (2.1%) (2.5%)
Current ratio (Note 1) BN (BzE1) 6.52 2.03
Note: Mtat -
1: Current ratio: Current assets divided by current liabilities. 18 MELEER C RBEERURBIAE.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Sun Le

Non-Executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Wang Ye
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021)
Mr. Wan Johnson
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Ye

Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021)

Mr. Wan Johnson
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Ye

Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021)

Mr. Sin Lik Man

Mr. Wan Johnson
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

EFXY

BITES
RN E (FEFRTEA )
7% Soqun

FHITES
BBzt

BIUEBRITES
REM AT AE
FEEE
BRI A

(R —FE——F+F—HEZ)
ERERE

(R _—FE - —F _H _—+7HEF
BEZE-—F A —HEER

B%EEG
REBMAELE (ZH)
e k3
WS
(R —F+H—HEE)
ERTRE

(R —E_—F_H -+ FZHFT
B _-ZF - —F N F—HEELR)

HNEEE

REMEE (F/E)
FEEE
BRI A

(R —FE——F+F—HEZ)
R
ERERE

(R —FE-—F - FH _+FHFT
BEZE-—FNA—HEER
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam

Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021)

Mr. Sin Lik Man

Mr. Wan Johnson
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman)
(re-designated as Chairman on 1 September 2021)
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021)
Mr. Wan Johnson
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Sin Lik Man
Mr. Hui King Tat

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Hui King Tat

AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
STOCK CODE

2326

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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B e
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B e
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RERR
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2326
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Clarendon House
2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2EEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AND
HEAD OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Unit 1102, 11/F
Shui On Centre
No. 6-8 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Construction Bank Corporation
CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

COMPANY HOMEPAGE

http://www.npegroup.com.hk

BERATEEEMBMREMERE

HARET
B8 H6-85%
WML
1111102

FEFERRT

FEERRITROBMRAF
Bk ERTHERRAE
ERET &R ARAT
BERTHERRF
FFEERTARAT

FERMBPREERE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

BERERMNBREZNE

EENEEBEERQE
58

EEAEE1835%

B H05418

NSRS

http://www.npegroup.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFREHRE

On behalf of the Board of the Company, | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company together with its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022
(the “Year”).

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has been
principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of metal minerals
and related industrial materials, and the production and sale of
industrial products.

Since the global outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019
("COVID-19") at the beginning of year 2020, the worldwide
economy and business model have experienced the
unprecedented shock. Dealing with the changing epidemic
control measurements like “lockdown” and “travel restrictions”
was becoming the “new usual business” for most of the
companies in the world, in particular the manufacturing and
global trading business sector. Same as most of our peers,
the Group has also suffered from the threat of raw materials
shortage and the drastic increment of logistic costs due to
the supply chain disruptions during the year under review.
Unavoidably our business performance for the year ended 31
March 2022 has been negatively affected by the above issues,
especially for our sourcing and sale of metal minerals and
related industry materials business.

On the other side, our wholly-owned PRC subsidiary - &
EEERGRERGAMBABRAE (iterally translated as
Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling Company Limited)
(the “Waste Recycling Company”) in Ningxia Hui Autonomous
Region of the PRC was able to maintain its stable contributions
to the Group's revenue and profit for the Year. In spite of the
slight decrease of its revenue during the year under review,
as the overall unit cost of production has generally decreased
due to the efficiency enhancement, the profit contributed by
the Waste Recycling Company has increased as compared to
the last financial year. The management of the Group will keep
reviewing its operational performance and efficiency time to
time to further improve its return to the shareholders of the
Company.

TANEBLEARERDEFEMARREAREER
HNEA B R AEE8) BE-_T "=
=+—HLEFE (KEE) 2FHK-

EHRR

BE_TZ__HE-_R=-+—HLEE -xEEX
ERERBREETBEY BRI ERMR
FTERBETXAERER -

B _THEFVNE2HIEE 20198 RFER
(TCOVID-19 ) LIZE » 2 IRAEHE R 25518 K FE
HIFT R ME R o FES TET 88 ~ THR1TIRHI) S 18
BIEHHEIERENAEHRAZHATN HE
B N HEREER B R YR - BALDAE
T—# > RO EEER A% B I8 EHFE ST
SRR B R R YRR A KB MATE S o
EoEet FMEE_S_—_F=A=+—H
FFEENEBERAS EMEFFRAANEE £LH
BEHMRBEREESBRY REMAITEME %
5‘%0

S—HE RAUURTEEENKERRZE2E
TENBADEEEERRERFSFNABRA
8 (MRRAR) RAFEEMEESEERTER
FEE’JH&Z fRF)E - BEHREBIEEEANN WG

BB LD BEHRNERBUEENEEBERD
HIRRAB B SN R - REER T
M-AEEERETREINFRNHEEERRER
W LUE— P HEH R A RERRERAEER
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS

PROSPECT

Over the last few years, the Group's principal business has been
facing an extremely unfavorable environment. The Group has
been encountering different kinds of challenges and difficulties
arising from various social and political issues. The outbreak
of the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") was definitely
the most catastrophic one for everyone and unfortunately,
the pandemic has persisted globally as COVID-19 has been
constantly mutating into new variants. Millions of deaths were
caused by COVID-19 and its variants, and that has severely
affected the global economic activities in the past two years.
Both regional and global supply chains have been substantially
disrupted, which have unavoidably increased the logistic cost
and also the uncertainty of supply of various metal minerals
for the construction and manufacturing activities in different
countries. Undeniably the above issues have negatively
affected the performance of the Group’s principal business
during the year under review.

In view of the fact that the national government of the major
economic entities were not able to come up with effective and
efficient ways to resolve the COVID-19 issue that has already
affected the global social and economical activities for more
than two years, the Group could only undertake relatively
more conservative and safer strategies to protect the interest
of the shareholders of the Company. Through implementing
assets restructuring and austerity measures, the Group has
successfully reduced its cost burden and enhanced its balance
sheet liquidity. The Group has reserved sufficient capital and
resources to capture the business opportunities following
the anticipated recovery of economic activities, and the
management of the Group believes the Group is now one step
ahead of its peers.

Al R

BEYF AEEFEEE —BHEHEBAT
AMEBRR AEE-—HBIFARAHLEREBCAR
ERERNZIENEMEEE 20198 RFFH K
(Tcovip-19)) BEHMBEAMSRBHERANK
BN — MAZNZE > BIRCOVID- 19 ENFE AL
WEE EBNEESKFE COVID- 19k &S
MEEBASET  TEBEMEREFERIRK
EZH RENERHEREZTINRETE &
BB AN A B RGN TR T AREER
BEMUEEIINZESBRYHEZ TRE
MeoROEFER LB ERENSIME A
EEFBERRRELEATE-

ERNETEQEENBERBNFCELAREBENES
MO ERBA AR ERIRE ERQE
TEE BB M ERICOVID-19F > L AN EE R A
FEAHERRTRZE2NREUREBER QAT REF
moAEEBEBREREEEMEMBEMEER N
BERTEETENMAEEESGRARIME &
EEERBERENESZ RERUIEERREEE
EPEREBRNRENER AEEEEEBMEEGE &
EEREBRERT Do
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The Group has been running the sourcing and sale of
metal minerals for years and has established solid business
relationships with leading mine suppliers as well as renowned
companies in the new energy materials sector. To achieve
leapfrog development, the Group expects the People’s
Republic of China government would further enhance its
support for the high technology-driven enterprises in the
new energy materials sector. The metal minerals sourced by
the Group are commonly utilized in the new energy materials
manufacturing sectors, and the Group believes there is a
significant room for an increase in demand of those metal
minerals following the development of this sector in the
foreseeable future. The consumption of certain minerals like
Lithium, Nickel, Manganese in batteries is expected to grow
exponentially over the next decades due to the increasingly
demand of Electrical Vehicle and that would be a significant
driver for the demand of minerals the Group is currently
trading. The management of the Group will keep exploring and
capturing the substantiable business opportunities that can
further enhance the return to the shareholders of the Company
time to time.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | hereby express my sincere gratitude
to all of our shareholders and business partners for their
continuous support, and to all directors and employees for
their efforts and contributions during the Year.

Sin Lik Man
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERHRS

FEESFR-ENSTEEBEYNRBNHEE
BHREBELNEYHERRFERMEZERZEN
LHRABRIRENESBAFR RBREBAE
R AEBRBFPEARKMBIBFRKE SN
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EXRBNTBEYEERNRERMERESE
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BUSINESS REVIEW
EZACINEE

OPERATIONS REVIEW

Continuing operations

For the year ended 31 March 2022 (“year under review”),
the Group was principally engaged in the sourcing and sale
of metal minerals and related industrial materials and the
production and sale of industrial products.

Revenue and Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group recorded a decrease
in revenue, from HK$601,950,000 for the year ended 31 March
2021 to HK$262,229,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022,
representing a decrease of approximately 56.4% as compared
to the last financial year. The Group’s gross profit decreased by
approximately 1.4% from HK$11,066,000 for the year ended
31 March 2021 to HK$10,908,000 for the year ended 31 March
2022.

The decrease in revenue of the Group mentioned above was
mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue arising from
the sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related industrial
materials business segments during the year under review
when compared to the last financial year. For the sourcing and
sale of metal minerals and related industrial materials business,
the Group recorded a segment revenue of HK$163,441,000
for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Year ended 31 March
2021: HK$492,528,000), representing a significant decrease of
approximately 66.8% as compared to last financial year.

Following the launch of coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19")
vaccination programs in various major cities around the world
during the year 2021, parts of the world rebounded from the
pandemic and the recovered spending has led to the drastic
increase in demand for different types of consumables. This
resulted in a shortfall of containers which led to a massive
disruption on the cross-border shipping arrangement that
has created delays and driven up the logistic costs. As such,
the Group’s sourcing and sale of metal minerals and related
industrial materials business has been seriously affected during
the year under review and the Group has been working closely
with its suppliers and customers to mitigate the impact of
those unexpected situations. This segment recorded a segment
profit of HK$360,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022 (Year
ended 31 March 2021: segment profit of HK$2,615,000),
and the decrease of the segment profit was in line with the
decrease of this segment revenue.

E 5[0l B8

RHRKEER
BE_TZ__F-_A=+—HLEE ((LEF
E)  AERTZERERBERIFESBIERY KB
MIERHMUREERBETERER

Wi K EF

REBEE AERRESREHEEE_S - —F
=ZB=+—HIEE 601,950,000 TiF /> E&
ECTE T E=F=+—HIEFE 262,229,000
B B E—UBEERLL56.4% REBRZ
ENRBEE_E_—F=-A=+—HILEEZ
11,066,000 T/H/ DN 4%EHE S - "F=H
=+—H1EEE 210,908,000 7T ©

T AEBRERBER LT EEHREEEEARF
BRI ECBERYREM T ERNERSEN
WRR E—MBEERLVAS -MRERIEES
BEVYKREBIERNERMS  ~AEEREE
TR CEZRA=+—HILEEERESERS
163,441,000 7T (BEZE S _—&F=H=+—H1:
T E 1 492,528,000/8 7)) B E— M BUEE KRR
1 #966.8% °

BE S - —E2REHBEARE20198RES K
(TcoviD-19)) EEEEAE H R HMERZE
BhRE HBEERSAEEIEHERNERZ
Bl -EENEBMAMEKRIEHR  SBEMER
BESEIAREEBA  EMIER R AR o
lﬁtf@&ﬁifm SEARBRIBEESBEY
REMTERNERZIBREZE AEE—H
éﬁiﬁ\ﬁérfﬁu%ﬁ%%jéf’ﬁ LURE ZERINER
N HE_E__F=F=+—HILEE"
LD R EN D EEH 5360,0008T (BHE_T
T—E=B=+—HIEE  D8%7%]2,615,000
H7T) o LD EERABEE LD B AR D T — 2
—F/HO
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Revenue and Gross Profit (continued)

For the production and sale of industrial products business
under EEEZEBERFRERGEFHAERAQE (literally
translated as Ningxia Huaxia Integrated Waste Recycling
Company Limited) (the “Waste Recycling Company”), the
Group recorded a segment revenue of HK$98,788,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2022 (Year ended 31 March 2021:
HK$109,422,000), representing a decrease of approximately
9.7% as compared to the last financial year. This segment
reported an increase in its segment profit by approximately
26.2%, from HK$7,657,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 to
HK$9,662,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022. The decrease
in segment revenue was mainly attributable to the decrease
in the sales volume of one major industrial product during the
year under review. However, as there was a general decrease in
the unit cost of production during the year under review, this
segment profit for the year ended 31 March 2022 was able to
record an increment as compared to the last financial year.

Other Net Income

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded an
other net income of HK$2,057,000 (Year ended 31 March
2021: HK$2,238,000) which was mainly represented by the
net foreign exchange loss together with the interest income
and sundry income. The net foreign exchange gain or loss
was arisen from the exposure to foreign exchange risk, which
was mainly related to Renminbi (“RMB”) and United Stated
dollars (“USD"). Over the last two financial years, the Group
management has successfully minimized the Group’s foreign
currency exposure and therefore the net foreign exchange loss
amount was maintained at the relatively low level for both of
the year ended 31 March 2022 and the year ended under 31
March 2021.

The overall variance between the other net income recorded
for the year ended 31 March 2022 and the other net income
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2021 was approximately
8.1%, and there was no material fluctuation for the other net
income recorded for the year under review as compared to last
financial year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

E#HEE (&)

Wi KR EFR (B)
NEEFEERRERGAMNABAERAR (MNRRF
NE) 2EERMHETERERESMS  &&
ERBE_S__F£=ZRA=1+—HILEEEBH®
B EERE98,788,0008 T (BIZE S _—5=H
=+—HLI%EE 109,422,000/ 7T) & _E—FF
BEERDVH.7% LN BERDEHRFNBEHE
TET == + H & E 27,657,000 T
BN 2% EHE_E-_"_F=A=+—HIt
Er;z9,662,ooo%noﬁiﬁuﬂzm,ﬂwigﬁmlﬁé
FETHEERPOBEERNNHEE TEMR A
o REIBEEER AR B AEEMSTEE TR
At#EE "S- "F=A=+—HILEENDEE
A E— @M B EE AT o

Hik A $58
BE_ZE__HF-A=+—HLEEE - xEBF
BEMUT A B 582,057,000 T (HE_S - —F=
B=+—HLFEE 22380008 T) > TEHEESR
BEFE BERMEBEWAKRBEERA -ERIE
FEEFRERAFEEAARE TARK)) RET
(T3£70)) HEREMINE RBRFTE S © EAfomlﬁﬁ
Eﬁzir‘ 5B E BB A A A 5 B YN E E LR B

BREE ALBE_SE_-__4#=F=+— E
thﬁr‘&%zi_::—ﬁ—ﬁ—wL—ElﬁEr;E’J
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BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily include staff costs, general
administrative expenses and depreciation. For the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Group’s management has kept on
implementing the austerity measures and therefore the Group
recorded administrative expenses of HK$13,601,000 (Year
ended 31 March 2021: HK$18,684,000), representing a decrease
of approximately 27.2% as compared to last financial year.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses of HK$4,425,000 (Year ended 31
March 2021: HK$3,852,000) are mainly represented by the
written down of inventories, impairment loss on deposits
and prepayments, loss on deregistration of subsidiaries and
impairment loss on non-controlling interests made during the
year under review.

Finance Costs

Finance costs decreased by HK$997,000, or approximately
52.9% from HK$1,886,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 to
HK$889,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022. The decrease
in finance costs was mainly attributable to the decrease in the
interest on lease liabilities during the year under review as
compared to last financial year.

For both of the years ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March
2021, the Group has reduced the use of bills receivables
discounting arrangement in its sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials business. The bills
discount charge recorded for both of the year under review and
the last financial year were therefore at a minimum level. The
Group’s management is continuously and carefully monitoring
the Group’s capital structure in order to utilize its financial
resources to meet its ongoing operational requirements and
business expansion. The Group may consider making the
discounting arrangement of bills receivables to maintain the
cash flows of the Group on a certain level when appropriate
and necessary.

E#HEE (&)

THREX

ATEAZTEGQREETHA —RITHBEX R
E-HE_T__E-A=-+—HILEEE &%
EEEERESHEMEN RItAERERS
THRE 13,601,000 (BE-_ST - —&F£=4
=+—HLEE 18,684,000 T) » B = —RE4E
R #927.2% ©

Hhi& &M%
HA &&= %4,4250008 70t BEE—_E - —%F=H
=+—HIEFEE : 3,852,000 7T) FEISNEIREE

EFHNEEMR R RBANRIERE ZH
B AR R RERIFER B BERE
EHE 1023

MERARBEE_S_—F=B=+—HLEE
1,886,000 7T 8 10 997,000 7T 81 £4952.9% &£ &

EEZ__EF=ZHB=+— Etir‘ﬁﬁswooo%
ToRERAR O ETEAROBEERAE

BEF B E E - EEMRLE B R -

BE_Z_"F-_A=+—HBERZZEZ—F=H
—t—HUEWMEFEE AEERRBERBESER
IR R AR TR =B PR B EELIRZ
PRV A - AL MEIEFE R E—EMBREE
FrEgBREBEMIRERIENREKT - AEH
EEEREREEERAEE 2 EARE U
AHEMBERBRVEFENEETERERE
ReAERUREEBTEERMSERFHEWSE
BRMIRLHE R —EKTFHRERE
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OPERATIONS REVIEW (continued)

Loss for the year
Continuing operations

In response to the unfavourable economic conditions and
persistent uncertainty of the economy outlook, the Group
has been implementing austerity measures to control the
operation cost and capital expenditure in order to reserve a
sufficient level of resources and capital. During the year under
review, there was a further decrease in administrative expenses
and finance costs when compared to the last financial year due
to the austerity measures implemented by the management.
Together with the positive profit and loss adjustment made
pursuant to the over-provision of income tax of the last
financial year, the Group recorded a decrease in loss from
continuing operations for the year, from HK$14,990,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2021, to HK$5,437,000 for the year under
review.

Discontinued operation

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
recorded a loss for the year from discontinued operation
of HK$23,009,000, which was mainly attributable to the
reclassification of foreign exchange differences relating to the
disposed subsidiary of approximately HK$17,422,000, from
equity to profit or loss which has led to the significant loss on
disposal of the subsidiary recognised upon the completion of
such disposal in June 2020.

Following the completion of disposal of above discontinued
operation in June 2020, neither profit nor loss from that
discontinued operation is required to be recorded for the year
ended 31 March 2022.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2022 amounted to HK$5,452,000 whereas a
loss of HK$37,907,000 was recorded in last financial year. This
represented a basic loss per share of HK0.026 cent for the year
ended 31 March 2022, whereas the basic loss per share of
HK0.180 cent was recorded in last financial year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
FE 5[0l B8

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group financed its operations mainly by cash generated
from its business activities and credit facilities provided by
banks. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had current assets
of HK$569,573,000 (As at 31 March 2021: HK$917,156,000),
comprising cash and bank balances of HK$9,018,000 (As at 31
March 2021: HK$7,518,000).

The Group’s current ratio, calculated based on current assets
of HK$569,573,000 (As at 31 March 2021: HK$917,156,000)
over current liabilities of HK$87,318,000 (As at 31 March 2021:
HK$451,921,000), was at a healthy level of 6.52, which was
significantly better than the current ratio as at 31 March 2021
(As at 31 March 2021: 2.03).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's trade payables amounted to
HK$45,840,000 (As at 31 March 2021: HK$409,568,000); trade
receivables amounted to HK$98,920,000 (As at 31 March 2021:
HK$519,263,000).

As at 31 March 2022, the Group's equity attributable to owners
of the Company increased to HK$531,077,000 (As at 31 March
2021: HK$514,171,000). No material change has been recorded
in equity attributable to owners of the Company from 31 March
2021 up till 31 March 2022.

During the year under review, the Group continued to
implement a prudent financial management policy to protect
the shareholders’ interest of the Group. The management
will keep on exploring the feasibility of carrying out certain
financing activities, with the support from financial and
securities institutions and professional advisors, to meet its
ongoing operational requirements and business expansions
requirements.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Foreign Currency Management

The monetary assets and liabilities as well as business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried out and
conducted in HKS$, RMB and USD. The Group maintains a
strategy in its foreign currency risk management, primarily
by including the estimated exchange differences on currency
exposure in our pricing of metal minerals trade to minimize
the impact of foreign exchange risk on the Group’s profit. The
Group will enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to
hedge against the Group’s currency exposure if appropriate
and necessary. The management thus believes the current
level of bank balances, certain receivables and payables
denominated in RMB and USD expose the Group to a
manageable foreign currency risk. The management is paying
vigilant attention to the fluctuation of RMB and is constantly
and closely monitoring the foreign currency exposure. The
Group will further consider using any appropriate financial
derivatives to hedge against the Group’s currency risk and
manage its exposure.

Capital Commitment
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no capital commitments
(As at 31 March 2021: nil).

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (As at 31 March 2021: nil).

Events After The Reporting Period

The outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) continued to
bring about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and may impact the Group’s operations and
financial position. The Group has been closely monitoring
the impact of the pandemic on the Group’s business and will
take all necessary and appropriate measures to reduce the
impact of the pandemic on the Group’s business. Based on the
information currently available, the Directors confirm that there
has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading
position of the Group since the end of the reporting period and
up to the date of this annual report.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXMEREEAGREREFTR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sin Lik Man, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer,
Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Aged 43, has been an employee of the Company since October
2017 and appointed as chief financial officer since 27 October
2017. Mr. Sin has been appointed as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 2 March 2018 and has been
appointed as acting chairman, chief executive officer and
authorised representative of the Company with effect from
31 July 2018. From 14 September 2018, Mr. Sin has been
re-designated as the chairman of the Board. Mr. Sin is also
a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sin
received a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
and further received a Master in Accounting from the Curtin
University of Technology, Australia. Mr. Sin is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA")
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA").

Mr. Sin has more than 20 years of experience in financial
control, corporate finance and capital market relations and
had taken up senior management positions in several Hong
Kong listed companies. Mr. Sin served as an independent non-
executive director in Huili Resources (Group) Limited (stock
code: 1303) from December 2011 to September 2013. He was
appointed as the company secretary of West China Cement
Limited (stock code: 2233) from May 2010 to May 2012. He was
the investor relations general manager of Integrated Waste
Solutions Group Holdings Limited (formerly called Fook Woo
Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 923) from June 2012 to
September 2013 and was appointed as company secretary
from June 2013 to September 2013. Mr. Sin Lik Man has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director and a
member of the Audit Committee of Kunming Dianchi Water
Treatment Co., Ltd (stock code: 3768) from November 2018 to
November 2020. All the companies indicated above with stock
code are listed in Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Sun Le

Aged 34, joined the Company as an executive director in
November 2019. Ms. Sun is also a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

Ms. Sun graduated from the Self-taught higher education
examination (55 B B2 %5)in Tourism Management
from the Northeast Normal University (88 J6EM &8 A 22) in 2011,
Ms. Sun has served as the senior management for several
trading companies in the People’s Republic of China, and she
has accumulated solid management experience in the trading
business sector.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Sun Di

Aged 36, joined the Company as a non-executive director
in September 2019. Ms. Sun is also a director of several
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Sun obtained a Bachelor’s degree in German with a minor
in international economics and trade from the Beijing Foreign
Studies University in July 2009.

Ms. Sun has extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
risk management in the finance and investment industry. She
had worked in KPMG Huazhen, an international CPA firm, for
the period from October 2011 to January 2018. Ms. Sun is a
non-practicing member of The Chinese Institution of Certified
Public Accountants.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEAEREFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam, Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit Committee and Member of the Risk
Management Committee and the Nomination Committee
Aged 53, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee (re-
designated as Chairman in October 2020) and member of the
Risk Management Committee and the Nomination Committee
in February 2020.

Mr. Cheung is a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and is a Certified Practicing Accountant
of CPA Australia. Mr. Cheung currently serves as an executive
director of Silk Road Logistics Holdings Limited (stock code:
988), an independent non-executive director of Boyaa
Interactive International Limited (stock code: 434) and China
Development Bank International Investment Limited (stock
code 1062), and the chief financial officer of China Zenix Auto
International Limited (OTC: ZXAIY).

Mr. Cheung served as an independent non-executive director
of Guoan International Limited (stock code: 143) from 2020 to
2021, Asia Television Holdings Limited (stock code: 707) from
2016 to 2019, and an independent non-executive director
of China Huishan Dairy Holdings Company Limited (delisted
in December 2019, stock code prior to the delisting: 6863)
in 2017. Mr. Cheung obtained a bachelor’s degree in social
science from the University of Hong Kong in 1991, a master’s
degree in accounting from the Curtin University of Technology
(currently known as Curtin University) in 1997 and a master
degree in science from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2002. The companies indicated above with
stock code are listed in United States of America and Hong
Kong.

Mr. Wang Ye, Chairman of the Nomination Committee and the
Risk Management Committee, Member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 34, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and the Risk Management Committee
(re-designated as Chairman in September 2021) and member
of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee in
February 2020.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Wang obtained a Certificate of National Legal Professional
Qualification in China in 2017 and was admitted to the
State Bar of California in the United States in 2018. Mr. Wang
obtained bachelor’s degree in Laws from Peking University Law
School in 2010, a master degree in Laws of Environmental and
Resource Protection from China University of Political Science
in 2013 and a degree of Juris Doctor from the University of
Southern California in the United States (£ & I 782 22 X
Z) in 2016. He has been a lawyer at King & Wood Mallesons in
Beijing from November 2016 to January 2020.

Mr. Tang Kin Nam, Member of the Risk Management
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee

Aged 56, joined the Company as an independent non-
executive director and has been appointed as member of
the Risk Management Committee, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee in
October 2021.

Mr. Tang obtained a Bachelor of Arts from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 1991 and a master degree in
China Economic Law from the University of Beijing in 1999. He
qualified as a chartered secretary of United Kingdom Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries in 1995.

Mr. Tang has more than 30 years experience in corporate
governance and executive management. Mr. Tang had
previously worked for an international Certified Public
Accountant firm where he had specialized in advising clients
on corporate and private trust structures. He then joined TMF
Group in 2000 and became the director and regional head of
international incorporations global business development,
Asia Pacific of TMF Group. Mr. Tang left TMF Group in 2017
to establish Maystar Corporate Solutions Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, to deliver
consultancy and advisory services to clients in relation to their
corporate restructuring, incorporation of overseas companies
and provision of company secretary services.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEAEREEAEREFE

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hui King Tat, Company Secretary and Authorised
Representative

Aged 38, joined the Group's finance and account department
of the Group since July 2015. Prior to joining the Group, he had
worked at several firms of certified public accountants from
2006 to 2015. Mr. Hui has more than 15 years of experience
in accounting and auditing and he obtained a bachelor’s
degree in accounting and finance from the Leeds Metropolitan
University (currently known as Leeds Beckett University) in
June 2006 and he has been a member of HKICPA since January
2014.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EREHRT

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing and sale of
metal minerals and related industrial materials and production
and sale of industrial products.

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year and an indication of likely future
developments in the Group’s business, can be found in the
“Chairman’s Statement” section and “Business Review” section
set out on pages 7 to 9 and pages 10 to 15 of this annual report
respectively. These discussions form part of this report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 61 to 62 of this annual report
respectively.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company will be
held on 16 September 2022. A notice convening the annual
general meeting will be despatched to the shareholders of the
Company in the manner required by the Listing Rules in due
course.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFTHRS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to be eligible for attending and voting at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company to be held at 16 September
2022, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company'’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited, Level 54, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
9 September 2022. The register of members of the Company
will be closed from 13 September 2022 to 16 September 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be registered.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group, is set out on page 184 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 25(a) to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2022, the Company has no distributable reserve
calculated (2021: HK$8,608,000).
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DONATIONS

Donations to charitable organisation by the Group during the
year ended 31 March 2022 is nil (2021: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Sin Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Sun Le

Non-executive Director
Ms. Sun Di

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam
Mr. Wang Ye
Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021)
Mr. Wan Johnson
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and
with effect from 1 September 2021)

In accordance with bye-law no. 87 of the Company’s Bye-
laws and code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”") contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, Mr. Wang Ye, Ms. Sun Le and Ms. Sun Di will retire from
office by rotation at the AGM. Mr. Wang Ye will not offer
himself for re-election at the AGM and will therefore retire as a
Director upon conclusion of the AGM whereas Ms. Sun Le and
Ms. Sun Di, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
as Directors at the AGM. Following the retirement of Mr. Wang
Ye, the Company will not be able to meet the requirement of
(i) having at least three independent non-executive Directors
on the Board under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and (ii)
having at least three members on the audit committee of the
Company in audience with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. In
order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company will use
its best endeavors to identify an appropriate person to fulfill
the variances as soon as practicable. Further announcements
will be made in relation to the appointment as and when
appropriate.
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In accordance with bye-law no.86 of the Company’s Bye-laws
and code provision A.4.2 of the CG code contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules, Mr. Tang Kin Nam will hold office until
the AGM and being eligible, offers himself for re-election at the
AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENT

Details of the directors’ emolument during the year are set out
in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” in this report of the directors, no other
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company, or any entity connected with
any director of the Company, had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company
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Approximate

percentage of

the Company's

issued

Capacity and Number of Number of share capital

Name of director nature of interests shares held  share options held Total interests (Note 1)

ERTF

BETREZ

BBt

ERgtd SikiEHEE FrfsiRin 8B FsERESE REZHBE (Hzt1)

Ms. Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 5,040,000,000 - 5,040,000,000 23.90%
Y o FREERIEE 2 e (H222)

Note 1: The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share
capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2022.

Note 2: These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le is deemed to be interested in
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
directors and chief executive of the Company had registered
an interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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COMPETING INTEREST OF DIRECTORS AND
THEIR RESPECTIVE CLOSE ASSOCIATES

For the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the Directors or
any of their respective close associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) is considered to have interest in a business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of
interests, which is required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The existing share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 27 August 2012 for
the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company adopted on
6 January 2003 was terminated on the same date.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, no share options under
the Share Option Scheme were granted, exercised, cancelled
or lapsed. As at 31 March 2022, no share options were
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the above sections headed “Directors’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate, and none of the
Directors or their spouse or minor children had any rights to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights during the year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SHAREHOLDERS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE

SFO

As at 31 March 2022, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held the Company’s
Capacity and as at 31 March issued share capital
Name of shareholder nature of interest 2022 (Note 3)
E V|
KZIBZZ ER1TRkEZ
=B=+—H BB AL
[E S TPt B kEZNE PR B (H1z£3)
Sun Le Interest of controlled corporation 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
TRt PREEHIEE 2 # 5,040,000,000 (#/5£17)
Sheen Success Investments Limited Beneficial owner 5,040,000,000 (Note 1) 23.90%
BEEBA 5,040,000,000 (#5£1)
Zhou Qiuhong Interest of controlled corporation 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
[BIAT PRIEGDER 2 #a 3,215,322,140 (#fa#2)
Ying Sheng Investment Co., Ltd Beneficial owner 3,215,322,140 (Note 2) 15.25%
BEEBA 3,215,322,140 (#fa#2)
Notes: izt
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Sheen Success 1 Z 5B 17 FiSheen Success Investments Limited &
Investments Limited which was wholly owned by Sun %A > MSheen Success Investments Limitedd
Le. Accordingly, Sun Le was deemed to be interested in HE2EHRR HIL RIFEDZFKRBAERHA 4
5,040,000,000 shares under the SFO. L3380 7 1°5,040,000,0008% A& 15 R E A #E A o
2. These shares were beneficially owned by Ying Sheng 2 Z B 17 FYing Sheng Investment Co., Ltd 2 & 1
Investment Co., Ltd which was wholly owned by Zhou % > MYing Sheng Investment Co., LtdFH /A FKAL &
Qiuhong. Accordingly, Zhou Qiuhong was deemed to be BEER -HIL RIEFES RIAERMA > FBATR
interested in 3,215,322,140 shares under the SFO. 18 5503,215,322, 140 A3 R ER o
3. The approximate percentage of the Company’s issued share 3. EEARBBETRAZBANB DL REAR

capital was calculated on the basis of 21,084,072,140 shares of
the Company as at 31 March 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified

of any other relevant interests or short positions in the shares

and underlying shares of the Company as at 31 March 2022

as required pursuant to section 324 of the SFO. Such other

relevant interest or short positions, if notified to the Company,

would have to be recorded in the said register of interests

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of

the SFO.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The material related party transactions as disclosed in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under the
scope of “Connected Transactions” or “Continuing Connected
Transactions” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules which are
required to comply with any of the reporting, announcement
or independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Bye-laws or the applicable laws of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company’s Bye-laws provided that the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or
sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or
omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed
duty, in their respective offices or trusts or otherwise in relation
thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the directors and other officers
of the Company during the year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report
of directors and in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of any business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year ended 31
March 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for
approximately 37.7% and approximately 95.4% respectively of
the Group's total revenue for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
50.9% and approximately 95.2% respectively of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates or any
shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors who
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital, had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The planet Earth and its various resources maintain the life of
all creatures and humans. In the face of dwindling resources,
the Group strongly believes that sustainable development is
the only way out. Therefore, we shoulder the responsibility
of environmental protection through strict compliance with
laws and regulations related to emission. Our uncompromising
commitment to integrate the concept of environmental
protection into the production system is also reflected by the
operation mode of the Waste Recycling Company and a system
for the management of environment, air emission, water
resources, soil, waste and energy.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFOHRE

EEEHN

RBEZZ__F=B=+—HLEFE ARF
WHEIUNEFERMA LR BRERNHEME
ERDEBNEERITHZEN

TEERRMERD

FEBZRARFEAARR ZHEMBIES ML
REBERNUW R ABEELI37.7%24995.4% ©

SEBZRAMEFREADARER ZIREEEY
B 7 2 B B N ER BB AR 2B £950.9% 52 £995.2% ©

RER BEEE REZEAEZHEARR
EEMATSERARTEETRAAES%Z EFR
RORAEERAERAHEETHEEEANER

o

IRIRER

WIKIRIE R EREE R HEREMBLEYHAERN
T - EHHTZEZNER AEEREAIFE
EREW R E -HUILHME B RERR
BT BRETEBERYABRRREGNER IR
RABTRHIETHHRE BER KER 1B B
Mk AEREENGE  RORIREFRENESH
ETEKEHERES -

Annual Report 2021/22 %R 2021/22

28



30

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFETRS

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors recognize that employees, customers and
business partners are the keys to the sustainable development
of the Group. The Group is committed to building a close and
caring relationship with its employees and business partners
and improving the quality of services to the customers.

With employees being its cornerstone for success and key
to the development of core competency, the Group makes
every effort to ensure its operation is compliant with laws
and regulations related to employee benefits. We also
protect employees’ rights and benefits and provide them
with comprehensive welfare, training and development
opportunities for talent retention. The Group also stays
connected with its customers and suppliers and has ongoing
communication with the customers and suppliers through
various channels such as telephone, electronic mails and
physical meetings to obtain their feedback and suggestions.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the
Company'’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong and the PRC while the
ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The Group's establishment and operations
shall accordingly comply with relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 March 2022
and up to the date of this annual report, the Group’s operation
has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong in all material respects.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had a total of about 134
employees and directors (As at 31 March 2021: 131). The
Group'’s staff costs, including directors’ remuneration,
amounted to HK$25,489,000 (Year ended 31 March 2021:
HK$26,239,000).

The Group remunerates its employees based on their
competence, performance, experience and prevailing market
rate. Other employee benefits included provident fund scheme,
medical insurance, subsidised training programme, share
option scheme as well as discretionary bonus.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
(continued)

The determination of emoluments of the Directors had
taken into consideration of their respective responsibilities
and contribution to the Company with reference to market
conditions.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2022,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Wang Ye and Mr. Tang Kin Nam (appointed on 1 October
2021).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Except for code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, which will be
discussed in section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer” in the Corporate Governance Report, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2022.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least
25% of the Company'’s total issued shares is held by the public
as at the date of this report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19) continued to
bring about additional uncertainties in the Group’s operating
environment and may impact the Group’s operations and
financial position. The Group has been closely monitoring
the impact of the pandemic on the Group’s business and will
take all necessary and appropriate measures to reduce the
impact of the pandemic on the Group’s business. Based on the
information currently available, the Directors confirm that there
has been no material adverse change in the financial or trading
position of the Group since the end of the reporting period and
up to the date of this annual report.
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AUDITOR

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited acted as auditor of the Company and
audited the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 March 2022.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Crowe (HK) CPA Limited as auditor of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Sin Lik Man
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 24 June 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXERRS

The Board is committed to uphold a high standard in
corporate governance. The Board considers effective corporate
governance is essential to protect shareholders’ interests and
enhance stakeholders’ value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code”) contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Sin Lik Man, an
executive director of the Company, has been appointed as
chief executive officer and acting chairman of the Company
on 31 July 2018 and was re-designated as the chairman of the
Company on 14 September 2018. Since then, Mr. Sin Lik Man
has been serving as both the chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2022, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.

The Directors will review the Company’s corporate governance
policies and compliance with the CG Code from time to time.

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") report for
the year ended 31 March 2022, which contains the Company’s
ESG information in compliance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide of the Listing Rules, will be
published in the Company’s and Stock Exchange’s websites no
later than five months after, the end of the financial year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
Having made specific enquiries with all the Directors, all of
them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standards set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
March 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management,
leadership and control of the Group. The Board’s primary
responsibilities are to formulate long-term corporate strategies,
to establish policies and plans, to oversee management of the
Group, to evaluate the performance of the Group, to assess
the achievement of targets set by the Board periodically
and to review and approve annual and interim results and
other significant financial and operational matters under
the leadership of the chairman of the Group. The Board is
directly accountable to the shareholders of the Company. The
responsibility of day-to-day management and operations of
the Group are delegated to the senior management of the
Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises six
Directors including two executive directors, namely Mr. Sin
Lik Man (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and Ms. Sun
Le, one non-executive director, namely Ms. Sun Di, and three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai
Lam, Mr. Wang Ye and Mr. Tang Kin Nam.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The Directors are considered to have a balance of skill and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Changes in the composition of the Board, audit committee
(“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”), nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and risk management committee (“Risk
Management Committee”) of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2022 and up to the date of this annual report are
detailed on pages 37 to 47 of this annual report.

The section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” sets out the biographical details of the current
Directors and senior management from pages 16 to 20 of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the aforesaid, none of the
Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship between any members of the Board.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors of the Company (“Independent Non-executive
Directors”) as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors are independent under the independence guidelines
set out in the Listing Rules.

The Company will provide a comprehensive, formal and
tailored induction to each newly appointed director on his/
her first appointment in order to enable him/her to have
appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and that he/she is fully aware of his/her
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. Directors are continually updated on
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. The Company has provided timely technical
updates, including the briefing on the amendments on
the Listing Rules and the news release published by the
Stock Exchange to the Directors. Continuing briefing and
professional development for Directors are arranged where
necessary.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information, including monthly Board updates from the
management, regular reports from the Board committees and
briefings on significant legal, regulatory or accounting matters
affecting the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, seven regular Board
meetings and the 2021 annual general meeting (“2021 AGM")
were held. The attendance records of each director is set out as
follows:
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BE_S__F-A-+-QLFE EEE
BT EREHEBR S —ERFHEAS
((C2-—FEREBFEAG) -SEFZHEE
REHMT :

Number of attendance

HERY
2021
Annual General
Board meetings Meeting
Name of Director EENSH EREER REBERE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Sin Lik Man B RE 717 1/1
Ms. Sun Le mET L 717 I
Non-executive Director FRITER
Ms. Sun Di ¥y ko 7/7 I
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REM AL 7/7 171
Mr. Wang Ye FELE 717 11
Mr. Tang Kin Nam WEmMILE
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (R ZEZ—F+H—HEZE) 2/2 -
Mr. Wan Johnson EBERE
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and W ZEZ—F_F_+HHFTE
with effect from 1 September 2021) BEZE-—FAA—HE£R) 4/4 -

The 2021 AGM of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2021 was held on 17 September 2021. The forthcoming
annual general meeting ("AGM") of the Company will be held
on 16 September 2022 (meeting agenda will be provided in
the Notice of AGM to be issued afterwards). Our Directors,
company secretary and other senior executives of the
Company will attend the AGM together with our external
auditors to answer any questions from the shareholders. All
Directors treasure the opportunity to canvass the views of the
shareholders of the Company at the AGM held annually.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company has
complied with the code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) of
the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
except for the deviation from Code Provision A.2.1 for the year
described below.

Pursuant to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Sin Lik
Man (“Mr. Sin”) has been serving as both the chairman and
chief executive officer of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

Although for the year ended 31 March 2022, the positions
of chairman and chief executive officer were not separated,
the responsibilities between the two positions were clearly
separated. The Board believes that such structure helps to
provide consistent leadership, facilitates effective business
planning and implementation of long-term business strategies.

In addition, all major decisions of the Company are made
only after discussion among Board members and appropriate
members of the Board committees and the heads of
departments. The power and authority are not concentrated
in one individual. Moreover, the Board is composed of
experienced members who are not involved in the day to day
management of the Company. They are in a position to and do
provide independent opinions effectively. The Board considers
that in the circumstances having the roles of the chairman and
chief executive officer played by the same individual would not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board
and the management of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive director and independent non-
executive directors is appointed for a term of twelve-month
period which automatically renews for successive twelve-
month periods unless terminated by either party by six
months’ notice in writing. All of the Non-executive Director
and Independent Non-executive Directors are also subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three
years at the AGMs of the Company in accordance with the
Company's Bye-laws.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Newly appointed Directors will receive guideline and reference
materials to enable them to familiarise with the Group's
business operations and Board'’s policies. The Company is
committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all
Directors for their continuous professional development.
Each Director is briefed and updated from time to time to
ensure that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and applicable legal and regulatory requirements
and the governance policies of the Group. All the Directors
also understand the importance of continuous professional
development and are committed to participating in any
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has specific written terms
of reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at
31 March 2022, the Remuneration Committee comprises
four members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman), Mr. Wang
Ye, Mr. Tang Kin Nam (appointed on 1 October 2021) and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Sin Lik Man.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management
remuneration; determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive directors and senior management and
making recommendations to the Board on remuneration of
non-executive directors. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for establishing a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as
market practice and conditions. The full terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee are available on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued) FNEEE (@)
The Remuneration Committee met twice during the year E}Z T _F=-A=+—BHIEFEE> §FM§E
ended 31 March 2022 to review the remuneration packages for & £47 T MREEUEREST2HFNTE S
Directors. The attendance records of each member is set outas 2 Z HEEREHIIWT :
follows:
Number of
attendance
Name of member e S HERH
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) REMEE (F/E) 2/2
Mr. Sin Lik Man KX 2/2
Mr. Wang Ye FELEE 2/2
Mr. Tang Kin Nam e m At
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (R —E_—F+HA—HEZT) -
Mr. Wan Johnson BEERE
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and R —E_—F_F 1A HFE
with effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE_—F /1 F—HEEL) 1/1

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee has specific written terms of
reference that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31
March 2022, the Nomination Committee comprises four
members, including three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Ngai
Lam and Mr. Tang Kin Nam (appointed on 1 October 2021) and
one Executive Director, namely Mr. Sin Lik Man.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors, evaluation of board composition,
assessment of the independence of independent non-
executive directors and management of the Board succession.
The full terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the“Diversity
Policy”) in September 2013 which set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against selection criteria, having regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based
on range of diversity perspectives, which would include but
not limited to, gender, age, cultural, educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Board has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) in January 2019 to fulfill the duties and
responsibilities of Nomination Committee as provided in its
terms of reference.

(a)

(b)

Recommended candidates

The Nomination Committee shall consider any and all
candidates recommended as nominees for directors
to it by any directors or shareholders; provided that
in the case of shareholder recommendations, such
recommendations comply with all applicable notice
requirements set forth in the Company’s Bye-laws,
the procedures for a shareholder’'s nomination to be
properly brought before a general meeting and the
Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee may also
consider, in its sole discretion, any and all candidates
recommended as nominees for directors to it by any
source.

Desired qualifications, qualities and skills

The Nomination Committee shall endeavour to find
individuals of high integrity who have a solid record of
accomplishment in their chosen fields and who possess
the qualifications, qualities and skills to effectively
represent the best interests of all shareholders.
Candidates will be selected for their ability to exercise
good judgment, to provide the commitment to
enhancing shareholder value, practical insights and
diverse perspectives. Candidates will also be assessed
in the context of the then-current composition of the
board, the operating requirements of the Company
and the long-term interests of all shareholders.
In conducting this assessment, the Nomination
Committee will, in connection with its assessment
and recommendation of director candidates, consider
diversity and such other factors as it deems appropriate
given the then-current and anticipated future needs of
the board and the Company, and to maintain a balance
of perspectives, qualifications, qualities and skills
on the board. The Nomination Committee may also
consider such other factors as it may deem are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The
above diversity perspectives, taking into account the
Company’s business model and needs, are set out in a
Diversity Policy.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(c)

(d)

Independence

The Nomination Committee shall ensure that at least
one-third of the board members (or such other number
of the members of the board as prescribed by the
Listing Rules from time to time) meet the definition of
independent non-executive director. The Nomination
Committee shall annually assess each nominee for
independent non-executive director by reviewing
any potential conflicts of interest that he or she and
their immediate family members (as defined in the
Listing Rules) may have, based on the criteria for
independence set forth in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
A retiring independent non-executive director who has
served the board for a period of nine consecutive years
or more is eligible for nomination by the board to stand
for re-election at a general meeting provided that he or
she is still considered independent by the board.

Nominee evaluation process

The Nomination Committee will consider as a
candidate any director who has indicated his or her
willingness to stand for re-election and any other
person who is recommended by any shareholders.
The Nomination Committee may also undertake its
own search process for candidates and may retain the
services of professional firms or other third parties
to assist in identifying and evaluating potential
nominees. The Nomination Committee may use any
process it deems appropriate for the purpose of
evaluating candidates which is consistent with those
set forth in its terms of reference, the Company’s Bye-
laws, the corporate governance policy and the policy
described herein; provided that the process used for
evaluating a nominee for each election or appointment
of directors shall be substantially similar and under
no circumstances shall the Nomination Committee
evaluate nominees recommended by a shareholder
pursuant to a process that is substantially different than
that used for other nominees for the same election or
appointment of directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

(e)

Nomination procedures

The company secretary shall call a meeting of the
Nomination Committee, and invite nominations
of candidates from board members, if any, for
consideration prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by board members. For filling
a casual vacancy, the Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations for the board’s consideration
and approval. For proposing candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting, the Nomination
Committee shall make nominations to the board for its
consideration and recommendation. Until the issue of
the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall
not assume that they have been proposed by the board
to stand for election at the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates
nominated by the board to stand for election at a
general meeting, a circular will be sent to shareholders.
The circular will set out the names, brief biographies
(including qualifications and relevant experience),
and any other information, as required pursuant to
applicable laws, rules and regulations, of the proposed
candidates. A shareholder can serve a notice to the
board of directors or the company secretary within
the lodgement period of its intention to propose a
resolution to elect a certain person as a director in
accordance with the relevant procedures posted on the
Company’s website. The particulars of the candidates
so proposed will be provided to all shareholders
for information by way of announcement and/or
supplementary circular. A candidate is allowed to
withdraw his or her candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
board of directors or the company secretary. The board
shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at
any general meeting. Shareholder proposed resolutions
shall take the same form as the resolutions proposed
for the candidates recommended by the board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Nomination
Committee reviewed the board composition and
independence of independent non-executive directors,
and considered the suitability of those retiring directors
standing for re-election at the next annual general meeting
as well as the need for a director succession plan. The
Nomination Committee also reviewed the Nomination Policy
and the Diversity Policy and discussed the objectives set for
implementing the latter, and noted that those objectives had
been achieved. The Nomination Committee concluded that the
board composition should continue unchanged.

The Nomination Committee met three times during the
year ended 31 March 2022 to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board; assess the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company; review
and make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-election of director. The attendance records of each
member is set out as follows:

REZE8T (@)

BE_Z__F-A=+—HLEFE RELZEE
ERNEFE CAAMABIFNTESEZBIL
M UEERTERIRBEFAG LEEEEZ
BAEEERE B UKESEENESFEZHE
2 RLEZEETRAIREHERS TR
WalmmETREMREZBR REDZFE
REREM - RLEEGLERAESFTTZAM
FEAERF & o

BE_Z__F-A=+—HLEFE RELZEE
ERETT=ZRERUBHESTEZRB - RER
MR FTEARABBIUFRITERTZBILM ; 7l
ZEREEEEFHERIMNESRHEEREER
Ro-BMBEZHEBREIIMT :

Number of
attendance
Name of member e S HERH
Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman) FELE (FFE) 3/3
Mr. Sin Lik Man ISR AE 3/3
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam SREEM T E 3/3
Mr. Tang Kin Nam BREm A
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (R —E_—F+H—HEZT) -
Mr. Wan Johnson BB ERE
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and (R —E_—F_F —+FHFFT
with effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE_——F /1 F—HE£) 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference
that is in compliance with the CG Code. As at 31 March 2022,
the Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman),
Mr. Wang Ye and Mr. Tang Kin Nam (appointed on 1 October
2021).

BZEEG

EZLZEEEUNAEEATIZRESEHE
BEHE - N _SE__F=-RB=+—H’8B%%
EEH=_RBIUFNTERHR BIRBMEE
(FFE) ZTERERTERAEE (R —F
+HA—BEZD -
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for assisting the
Board in applying financial reporting and internal control
principles and in maintaining an appropriate relationship with
the Company’s auditor. The Audit Committee is also delegated
the corporate governance function of the Board to monitor,
procure and manage corporate governance compliance within
the Group. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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EREZEETEEERESERAMBERK
P9 BB B 7 IR B Ko Bl AN A B 1% BT 4 FF 2 0 Bl
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websites.
The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended #HE_EL_-__HF=-FB=+—HILLEE BERZZEE
31 March 2022 and the attendance records of each memberis ERITT=ZRNEH ISHEZHEBLEHIAOT :
set out as follows:
Number of
attendance
Name of member REHE HERH
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam (Chairman) REMEE (F/E) 3/3
Mr. Wang Ye FELE 3/3
Mr. Tang Kin Nam BREm A
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (R ZFEZ—F+F—HEZE) 1/1
Mr. Wan Johnson BB ERE
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and (R ZEZ—F -+ 7#HHET
with effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE_——F /1 F—HE£) 2/2
The summary of work performed by the Audit Committee MW TAXRFEBZEZE BT TIEMM :

during the year:

. reviewed and discussed the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2021 and recommended to the Board for approval;

. reviewed the corporate governance compliance with
the CG Code and the disclosure requirements for the
corporate governance report;

. reviewed and discussed the unaudited financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2021 and recommended to the Board for
approval;

. EBER L mAERBEE_SE_—F=H
Z+—HUEFEZEBZUBRET T2
BREFTTUMAE;

. BERTCEERFERTEEERTRIZ

BRAREEELRREZMERTE ;

. %Eﬁﬁ&utum&j&%.ﬁi—v—_fﬁhﬂ
=STHENEBZAREERHUBRER I
BREFETLUME;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

. reviewed and discussed with management and auditor
of the Company the accounting policies and practices
which may affect the Group and the scope of the audit;

. reviewed the effectiveness and sufficiency of
the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system of the Group;

reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the Company’s auditor; and
reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on
the re-appointment of the Company’s auditor; and

engaged a professional consultant to conduct an
internal audit review and risk assessment of the Group.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed
the annual report and the annual results announcement for
the year ended 31 March 2022, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee with specific written terms
of reference was established by the Company on 23 November
2015. As at 31 March 2022, the Risk Management Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman) (re-designated as Chairman on 1
September 2021), Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam and Mr. Tang Kin Nam
(appointed on 1 October 2021).

The Risk Management Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing the general goals and fundamental policies of the
risk and compliance management, internal control and risk
management and internal audit functions of the Group and
made recommendations to the Board on the same. The full
terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are
available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites.

BB IRE R AN B % BATE B K 5 50 B A

= LB
53?;.5$$@Z@“Eﬁﬁz%&’l‘%%%&%ﬁ%ﬁ
B

. BEHRARBAMBREGNE - AREERE
EENEEEFIE M RTREMY ;

. BRI R ER A B IZEEN 2 & R
o URBRAANBAZEMZBREER
WHEEZREEE &

- RESEENHAEEETNSELR
R T A o

REZBB BZEZEECEREE_Z2 -
—B=1+—HUIEFEZERNFEEXEAH W
BEEETFUME

REEREZEE
FAAARE-RET—A-+ZARTARE

fiéﬁ@’ﬂialﬂiz%ﬁ EHEEE - EA_
E_THFZRA=t+—H EREEZEEH=%
BIFRITES BIEEEE (ER T2 =—
FNA—HEREAERE - REMEERBER
KEMRZ—F+A—HESMD Bl

RREREZE eI EaERTAEEARMNS
HEEBENERBE R REREER N EZEMNRR
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (continued) R[GEBIEZEE (&)

The Risk Management Committee met twice during the year HEZE_Z_-_"F£=FA=+—HILFE AKERE
ended 31 March 2022 to identify risk on Group’s operation; to ZEERIT T MR EE > UHBAEREE L
review and recommend to the Board the interim review reports B % ; 55 B B b% & I8 K A9 30 B 22 A9 b BR 4R 5 ¥R
on risk management and internal control. The attendance of & > IHItAEESIFHEEER - SHEZH

each member is set out as follows: FEERSEINWT
Number of
attendance
Name of member REH4H HERH
Mr. Wang Ye (Chairman) FERE (FEFE)
(re-designated as Chairman (R —E-——F/F—HERTELTE)
on 1 September 2021) 2/2
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam REMIAEE 2/2
Mr. Tang Kin Nam BiEm A
(appointed on 1 October 2021) (R ZEZ—F+A—HEZE) 1/1
Mr. Wang Johnson BLERE
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and (= %S: —FZH A+ A HFE
with effect from 1 September 2021) H-ZE - —F /A —HEX 1/1

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION % 26T B2 1% 21 EM N <&

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about HBREARATIIEZEMBAATHE_T_——
their responsibilities on the Company’s consolidated financial =HB=+—HItFEHFEMFRERZ ST 2Bt
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out in the N ARFHRF54E608 2 MBI Z MR G —
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 54 to A °

60 of this annual report.

During the year, the following fees were paid or payable to MRAEER > BNHEN AT ZHMAEE EE
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited (“Crowe”), the auditor of the Company:  (F®) @stIEHBFAARAD (HEEE) 2 &

AT :
HK$’000
FAET

Fees for audit services (Note a) ZERS 2 B fF (fita) 660
Fees for non-audit services (Note b) FFZEIREZ B H (H5Eh) 170
Total wBEt 830
Notes: o=
(a) The audit services provided by Crowe. (@ R HEE EERRM -
(b) The non-audit services provided by Crowe. (b) FFZ AR TS B S AR M
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 March 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

In order to establish the duties and responsibilities of the Board
in performing its corporate governance functions, the Board
has delegated certain corporate governance functions to the
Audit Committee and the Risk Management Committee which
include the following:

(a) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

(b) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and

practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct and compliance manual applicable to
employees and directors; and

(e) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the corporate governance report.

EFMMBRRZMBPRET

“ﬁu&wﬁiﬁﬁ@&EmW“ i
L F B 2 B — BT R B R PRI
B2

EFEEHARSENGRARABE_ZT -
—R=t—HLEEEGREGHMBREZEE

EEERBAE

RELEEIRITEEE /uﬁﬁﬁbzﬁﬁtf&fﬁc ’
EFgERETLEER KT EZEZES
KREBEEEZS S @%LX"FRIE

@@ HIERBNAABDZEEELRERE
RoUmEEFERMES;

b)) BIKEREZEkSHRE
RHEHEELE;

PN =pd:=5 V4

() BT RERANEE
EZBERRER

STERREERES

(d) BE B REREERESEDE
Z2AIRERFM;, &

RZ#T

() WIERBETEEEATRIZERRDE
XEAREAZIKE-
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibilities for maintaining
adequate systems of risk management and internal control to
safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests. The
systems, including a defined management structure with limits
of authority, is designed to help achieve business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorised use, and maintain
proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication. The systems
are set up to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement of financial statements or
lost of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and achievement of the Group's
objectives.

Effective risk management is essential in the long-term
growth and sustainability of the Group’s businesses. The Board
monitors the risk management and internal control systems
on an ongoing basis. It evaluates and determines the nature
and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives. An annual review of effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems has
been conducted. The annual review ensured the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions.

The process used to identify, evaluate and manage the
significant risks of the Group is embedded in the Group’s
normal business operations. Organisational structure
is well established with clearly defined authorities and
responsibilities, and the Group has developed various risk
management and internal control policies and procedures for
each business unit to follow. Business units are responsible
for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated
with their respective units regularly. The results of assessment
are reported to management which subsequently assesses
the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides remedial plan and
monitors the progress of rectification with the assistance of
the head of the business units. The results and effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal controls have been
reported to the Audit Committee.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Guidelines have been provided to the directors, officers,
management and relevant staff in handling and disseminating
sensitive and confidential inside information with due care.
Only personnel at appropriate level can have access to
sensitive and confidential inside information.

In view of the Company’s businesses and scale of operations,
and in order to adopt the most cost-effective method of
conducting periodic reviews of the Company’s internal
controls, the Company has engaged an external consultant to
conduct review on the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems to identify and evaluate significant risks of the
business operations. The Board believes that the involvement
of the external consultant could enhance the objectivity and
transparency of evaluation process. The external consultant
has conducted an annual review to assess the adequacy and
effectiveness of the systems for the year ended 31 March 2022
in accordance with the requirements under code provision C.2
of the CG Code, and according to the scope of review agreed
and approved by the Audit Committee. The review covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls.

After the review, a report of findings and recommendations
for improvement in relation to the systems has been provided
to the Audit Committee and management. The internal audit
report has been approved by the Audit Committee and
management is required to establish remedial plans and take
required actions to rectify those internal control deficiencies
identified according to the respective risk level and priorities.
Subsequent review will be performed by the external
consultant to monitor the implementation of those agreed
recommendations and to report the results of the follow up
review to the Audit Committee.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Hui King Tat (“Mr. Hui") was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 1 January 2020. The biographical
details of Mr. Hui are set out under the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
page 20 of this annual report. Mr. Hui has duly complied with
the relevant professional training requirements under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2022.

[ B B R R ERER 4E ()

EMNEE - SREEAE - EEERAMEIE
BEREREEHRRAREEANREESHEES -
EBEERRABENNSHRARRELEANEH
Bo

ERINARDHNEBREERE  LIRAT R
REMANGEN G EZERER AR AL EE
- ARBEZEISBEBEAERNARER
RABESEERRETER > UHH T HERE
ENEARR -ZEZFGHE IIBEBZ2ET
M EREFNEFRENBERE - SNBEBER
BEEEATRITRYECAUHRZRERELE
EEFRAERMENEREBEETFEEER U
B E_Z__F-A=+—HLEFEZRHKZ
DEBRAN ZERARNEVH EERGHE
EEMBEREEEH

RNERR ERNEZEZESRERBRHAEE
REERNERGNER -BEREEITERER
MEZRS MEEEARBSARKTELER
% 1l TE 7 R 51 B R R s AT B E A F BB ER
ETR-IMEMENERETSH  UERZ
FHEBESHNITERN ERREERERTSH
“EEG-

NEME

SFHUERE ((FRED N2 -2F—A—HE
ZERERBZRBAMB FREZBEFIFH
REFERFXEEEZReREBEAEREFE
—HRFRERBE_S__F=A=+—H
HFEEZRET EHRAIE3.29FIETHER
BHEEIRE o

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEREREAT



SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

According to bye-law no. 58 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting
the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with
the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (the “Companies Act”).

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act, any number of shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having at the date of
the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to which the
requisition relates; or not less than one hundred shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to:

(a) give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive
notice of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is
intended to be moved at that meeting;

(b) circulate to shareholders of the Company entitled
to have notice of any general meeting send to them
any statement of not more than one thousand words
with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that
meeting.

The requisition must be deposited to the Company not less
than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week
before the meeting in case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company

According to bye-law no. 88 of the Company’s Bye-laws, no
person other than a Director retiring at the general meeting
of the Company shall, unless recommended by the Directors
for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting of the Company unless a notice signed by
a shareholder of the Company (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the general
meeting of the Company for which such notice is given of
his/her intention to propose such person for election and
also a notice signed by the person to be proposed of his/
her willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s head office in Hong Kong or at the Company'’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Secretaries Limited provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven days and that the period for lodgement of such notice(s)
shall commence no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such election
and end no later than seven days prior to the date of such
general meeting.

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th
Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy, which allows
the shareholders of the Company to share the profits of the
Company whilst retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s
future growth. According to the Company’s dividend policy,
in addition to the final dividends, the Company may declare
interim dividends or special dividends from time to time.

According to the Company’s dividend policy, the Board shall
consider the following factors before proposing and declaring
dividends:

the Group's general financial condition;

the Group's working capital and debt level;
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DIVIDEND POLICY (continued)
the Group’s liquidity position;

retained earnings and distributable reserves of the
Company and each of the members of the Group;

future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

the general market conditions;

the general economic conditions and other internal
or external factors that may have an impact on the
business or financial performance and position of the
Group; and

any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by the Company is
also subject to any restrictions under the Laws of the Bermuda,
the articles of association of the Company and any applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s dividend policy will be reviewed from time
to time by the Board and there can be no assurance that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount for any given
period.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its shareholders, investors and
other stakeholders. These include the annual general meeting,
the annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars and the Company’s website at www.npegroup.com.hk.
Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner. Investors may write directly to the Company
at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at Unit 1102, 11th
Floor, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

o RYR R S

A\ Crowe

BEEEE () StMEHMERARE
Crowe (HK) CPA Limited

i REE TSIRET 7R IBEFD9E
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of New
Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to
183, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Valuation of trade receivables

Refer to notes 2(h)(i), 2(j) and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
R ESTEIHE

Trade receivables amounted to approximately HK$98,920,000 as
at 31 March 2022.
RIZZ"F=B=+—H"BRE ZHIE4 498,920,000

JT ©

Management make estimates when assessing impairment
provision of trade receivables. The estimates were made based
on the ageing of the receivable balances, debtors’ credit quality,
likelihood of collection, historical write-off experience and
current market conditions.

ReT RN E MBI RERER > EEEFH s AR
s D ERBWRIBA R IRE - BB ANGEEER IXE
FIEHI BT AR ~ A EE S0 B S B AT T AL o

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing recoverability of debts involves a significant
degree of judgement and estimation by management.
EMHNEARERESEE WHAREBGREMHREN
BEM UERRERHEEFEN R EER S R EREFLE
KIZE A B R (5t o
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BE:tPEREAMERNTGE

- we obtained direct confirmations from a
selected sample of debtors for the trade

receivables
KM EHmENEREASEWE ZIEER
HiZmER

- we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support
the validity and completeness of sales to
gain assurance for the outstanding trade
receivables
BPERRE I M R LU i
ENB R R ST > e TRk AR Uk B89 FE
W8 Z RIS (R

- we assessed the management’s basis and
assumptions employed in making estimates
on the impairment provision of the
receivable balances and the extent of loss
allowance required
BB 5T E B b 5t FE W IB A ER BV R
BEEEKRPTERFLNEIBREEEROK
BRPAEL VR R
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Valuation of prepayments and deposits

Refer to note 2(h)(ii), and 19 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies

The Key Audit Matter
R BT EIE

Prepayments and deposits amounted to approximately
HK$403,684,000 as at 31 March 2022.
RZE__HF=A=+—H BENREEREEHNR
403,684,000/ 7T ©

Management performed assessment as at end of each reporting
period to consider whether there is any indication that these
prepayments and deposits may be impaired. The recoverable
amounts of these prepayments and deposits are assessed by the
estimate of net cash flows to be received for the utilisation of
the prepayments and deposits taking into account the events
that have occurred and circumstances that have changed,
historical experience and current market condition.
BEEREREGARETNE UEREEEERATRET
ZERNRIBERREOIERNE - ZERENRIEBERZE SN AU
Bl RBEAZERMRERREFWNNESRER
B TEREELENEGRERENE R - BELREK
S A1

Based on the results of management’s impairment assessment,
impairment loss of approximately HK$2,106,000 have been
made by management on prepayments and deposits for the
year ended 31 March 2022.
REEEENRENGEAR BE -2 - —_F=A=+—
BEEE EEEEMBEMNRERREFIRABEBEEY
2,106,000 77T °

We identified this as a key audit matter because of its
significance to the consolidated financial statements and
because assessing the recoverable amounts of prepayments
and deposits involve significant degree of judgement and
estimation by management.
EMHENEARERESEE AR EBGREMHREN
BEM > DURRE R TG TR RIE K& 12 & 0 BT U 0] & 58655 &
BB FEEREREEH B K &5t

RAMEREE HE

AP BRRMEE2(h) () R19KR FEHEER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BEtPREAMERNTGE

we obtained direct confirmations form a
selected sample of counterparties for the
prepayments and deposits
BPEHENSFAHBMRERESE
BN E HEHER

we inspected, on a sampling basis, external
documents and evidences to support the
validity and completeness of prepayments
and deposits paid
BMEERE BG4 REBHR UZFE
NFENRIBER SN AR R TTEM

we assessed the management’s basis
and assumptions employed in making
estimates in the impairment provision of the
prepayments and deposits balances and the
extent of impairment loss required
BMEEEEE M BB REEE
ERAVR B E R PTRELNREREREREE
R R X 155 R P LE B 1R 5%
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BI MK S
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’'s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Alvin Yeung Sik Hung.

Crowe (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 June 2022

Alvin Yeung Sik Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05206
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

o A 3 2L
:%ﬂ'\l:l H

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &

ETEC

F=ZA=+—HLEFE

2022 2021
—=2- ey
Notes HKS$’000 HKS$'000
=3 FAET FET
Continuing operations FEREER
Revenue & 4(a) 262,229 601,950
Cost of sales 4 & Al A (251,321) (590,884)
Gross profit EF 10,908 11,066
Other net income Hg AR5 5 2,057 2,238
Selling and distribution costs THE R DR (886) (794)
Administrative expenses TEMAZ (13,601) (18,684)
Other operating expenses H& = (4,425) (3,852)
Loss from operations RE S (5,947) (10,026)
Finance costs B E A4S 6(a) (889) (1,886)
Loss before taxation PRI AIESIE 6 (6,836) (11,912)
Income tax Fr15i% 7(a) 1,399 (3,078)
Loss for the year from continuing REFEREER 2
operations FrEEE (5,437) (14,990)
Discontinued operation BARIEEEER
Loss for the year from discontinued REBERIEREEFEY
operation FrEsiE 11 - (23,009)
Loss for the year FREIE (5,437) (37,999)
Attributable to: TEHIANLFEM :
Owners of the Company PN/NEIEZZ SN (5,452) (37,907)
Non-controlling interests JEVER = 15 (92)
Loss for the year FREIE (5,437) (37,999)
Loss for the year attributable to AT ABEERN
owners of the Company: K518 ¢
- from continuing operations —RBFERESER (5,452) (14,898)
— from discontinued operation —REBARILEREER - (23,009)
(5,452) (37,907)
HK Cent HK Cent
Al =il
Loss per share SREE 12
From continuing operations REFEREER
Basic and diluted EARK 4 (0.026) (0.071)
From discontinued operation REBKRIERE TR
Basic and diluted EARRHE - (0.109)
From continuing and discontinued REFEREERR
operations BARIEREET
Basic and diluted EAR K8 (0.026) (0.180)

The notes on pages 68 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.

E68E183H 2 Mt R EMBImMKR L —8 Do
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FReEmkEMEERER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

2022 2021
—E”C —ET—fF
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Loss for the year FREE (5,437) (37,999)
Other comprehensive FRAZHMEZEWE
income for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently )R E & Al fEEF DIEE BT 2 BE
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on HENBARMBRERELEZ
translation of financial statements ERER
of subsidiaries 20,593 40,161
Reclassification adjustments for the HIEME AR Z B D EAE
deregistration of a subsidiary 1,532 -
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign F£ARABHEEBINEFRFZ
operation disposed of during the year B OLERAE - 17,422
Other comprehensive income FRzZzHMEE WS
for the year (net of nil tax (2021: nil)) OBERE (CE_—F: %)) 22,125 57,583
Total comprehensive income FRAEZEKEELE
for the year 16,688 19,584
Attributable to: TH AL :
Owners of the Company KNBHER A 16,906 20,100
Non-controlling interests JEER (218) (516)
16,688 19,584
Total comprehensive income/(expenses) &AA T HE AELE2EEE, FX)
attributable to owners of the Company #EZEE4H :
arise from:
Continuing operations FHEREE 16,906 25,471
Discontinued operation BEARIERE R - (5,371)
16,906 20,100

The notes on pages 68 to 183 form part of these financial 568 183E Z it A Z LU HEImRER 2 —2pH o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAR

AT31 MARCH 2022 R_ZE__#=H=+—H

2022 2021
-z %
Notes HKS$’000 HKS000
Kz FAET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M RE KR 14(a) 31,610 31,802
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14(b) 23,796 28,767
Goodwill HE 15 - -
Other intangible asset HthmAE&EE 16 - -
Deferred tax assets FEIEFRIAE B 24(b) 40 41
55,446 60,610
Current assets RBEE
Inventories =78 17 57,553 31,275
Trade receivables FEW & Z 718 18 98,920 519,263
Prepayments, deposits and other FENRIE & &
receivables H AU RIS 19 404,082 359,100
Cash and cash equivalents HEMREEEY 20(a) 9,018 7,518
569,573 917,156
Current liabilities B IA=N]
Trade payables B E I8 21 45,840 409,568
Accruals, deposits and other payables ESTER - EE R
HMEFRIE 22 37,451 35,773
Lease liabilities HEARE 23 1,063 1,393
Tax payable EIRIE 24(a) 2,964 5,187
87,318 451,921
Net current assets REBEEZFE 482,255 465,235
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRHER 537,701 525,845
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRR

AT31MARCH?2022 MIE__H#=H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= %
Notes HKS$’000 HKS000
HiaE FAET FAET
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 23 15,611 20,443
Deferred tax liabilities IR IAE F 24(b) 66 66
15,677 20,509
Net assets BERE 522,024 505,336
Equity m
Equity attributable to owners KNBHEB NEHER
of the Company
Share capital (&N 25(b) 4,217 4,217
Reserves B 526,860 509,954
531,077 514,171
Non-controlling interests IRt (9,053) (8,835)
Total equity i EE 522,024 505,336

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directorson A —ZF— " F ;XA —+ M A K EF It A RIRE

24 June 2022. 170
Mr. Sin Lik Man Ms. Sun Le
B EE B+
Director Director
£ EE

The notes on pages 68 to 183 form part of these financial $68F 1838 2 Mt AZZHBRER T —H D o

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MOEmEHR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZEZ_T - _F=—HFA=+—HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAFEA A
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory Contributed  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserves surplus reserve profits Total interests equity

kE  ROEE GHEE  EXER  LERE  ESRER  ERRBE  REEM it JHEREE  REeE
HKS000  HKSOOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSOOO  HKSDOO  HKSOOD  HKS©OO
TE TET FET FET T TET TET TET TE7 TET TET

At 1 April 2020 ZZ-ZENA-H 4217 41,970 (1522) 7,851 21,134 31,960 (61,223) 449,684 494,071 (8319) 485,752
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - - - (37907) (37,907) 92) (37,999)
Reclassification adjustments for a foreign  FRBHEENEHZ

operation disposed of during the year ~ EFfHEER - - - - - - 17422 - 17422 - 17,422
Exchange differences arising on BERRADMBRE

translation of financial statements of EEVERER

subsidiaries = = = = = = 40,585 = 40,585 (424) 40,161

Total comprehensive income/(expenses)  ER2EME /(%)
for the year xd = o - = = = 58,007 (37,907) 20,100 (516) 19,584

Transfer from statutory reserves to retained 7 th &£ i B AF) B £ €

profits upon disposal of a subsidiary HEEREREER - - - - (8,052) - - 8,052 = = =
Transfer from retained profits to statutory R EER FHEETE
reserves =11 - - - - 2,084 - - (2,084) - - -
Utilisation of reserve HRkE - - - - (706) - - 706 - - -
At 31 March 2021 RZB-—&
=B=+-8 4217 41,970 (1522) 7,851 14,460 31,960 (3,216) 418,451 514171 (8,835) 505,336
At 1 April 2021 RZBZ—-%£MBE—H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 14,460 31,960 (3,216) 418,451 514,171 (8,835) 505,336
Loss for the year FRBE - - - - - - - (5,452) (5,452) 15 (5,437)

Reclassification adjustments for the FREHEIBATZ
deregistration of a subsidiary of during ~ EHHEEE

the year - - - - - - 1,532 - 1,532 - 1,532
Exchange differences arising on BRENBARMBRR

translation of financial statements of EEVERER

subsidiaries - - - - - - 20,826 - 20,826 (233) 20,593

Total comprehensive income/(expenses)  ER2EME/ (%)

for the year aE - - - - - - 22,358 (5,452) 16,906 (218) 16,688
Transfer from retained profits to HRGENBEEET

statutory reserves =11 - - - - 2,082 - - (2,042) - - -
Utilisation of reserve kG - - - - (982) - - 982 - - -
At 31 March 2022 RZ8-—&

=B=1+-8 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 15,520 31,960 19,142 411,939 531,077 (9,053) 522,024

The notes on pages 68 to 183 form part of these financial 5568F183E 2 izt A% EHMFEMER T —
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

2022 2021
- T4
Notes HKS$’000 HKS'000
ik FHET FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REES
Loss before taxation PRI ARS8
— from continuing operations —RBFERSEER (6,836) (11,912)
- from discontinued operation —REBARIEREET 11 - (3,404)
(6,836) (15,316)
Adjustments for: MU TBZIEEH 2 8% .
Finance costs Bh B pR A 6(a)& 11 889 1,934
Loss on disposal of property, HEME KRERKE
plant and equipment 218 6(c) - 172
Written off of property, M2~ R B e o5 A T
plant and equipment 6(c)& 11 158 421
Depreciation for property, ME-BERREZ
plant and equipment e 6(c)&11 5,447 11,598
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 6(c)&11 6,097 7,711
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries HIEM B A B 18 6(c) 384 =
(Reversal of)/loss allowance on trade FEW B Z7k18 (#al)
receivables E5IEEE 6(c) (239) 469
(Reversal of)/loss allowance on other Hihpeuwskia (Bl
receivables B E 6(c) (54) 430
Impairment loss on deposits and e RBNRIERE
prepayments 518 6(c) 2,106 =
Written down of inventories FE MR 6(c) 1,682 2,263
Impairment loss on JEPERG R T R B RS 1R
non-controlling interests 6(c) 372 690
Interest income 2 WA 5 (372) (354)
Net foreign exchange loss PE 183 RE 1,032 1,892
17,502 27,226
10,666 11,910
CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL EEETEH
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (M R (26,275) 1,038
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables ~ FEWRE ZRIBZ
e () 429,232 (179,021)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and ANMIERERK
other receivables HfhEWERIE Z 380 (31,840) (130,884)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables ENESHEZ
CRtZ) /180 (368,546) 139,179
Increase in accruals, EsTER e
deposits and other payables H e FRIBZ M 317 12,740
2,888 (156,948)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &

HT e | EEE/”LE%
E_E__F=HA=+—HILEFE

2022 2021
= T —F
Notes HKS’000 HKS 000
Kz FAET FET
CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) ®EH (AR KE2HE
OPERATIONS 13,554 (145,038)
Income taxes paid BEFTEHR
PRC =2 24(a) (1,006) (2,228)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) %R H ~ () K& E&hz
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REFHE 12,548 (147,266)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KRETE
Payment for the purchase of property, SHEENE -BEK
plant and equipment HEZRIE 14(a) (4,094) (1,227)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary HEWBABZFAERIE 11 - 156,693
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM (A}) KB EZHZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REFEE (4,094) 155,466
FINANCING ACTIVITIES RMEEE
Interest paid BEF R - (40)
Proceeds from bank advances for IRITRIREREER Y
discounted bills FrigsIa - 28,710
Repayment of bank advances for BIRIRITRIIR RN
discounted bills - (27,600)
Capital element of lease rental paid BENEEzAEEH D (5,996) (6,176)
Interest element of lease rental paid BENEEZFEZHD (889) (1,894)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING BB RSz IREREE
ACTIVITIES (6,885) (7,000)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERREEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS N3 1,569 1,200
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT REVNZREKRIREEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 7,518 6,107
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXRREIZE
RATES CHANGES (69) 211
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERZREKRIREEEY
END OF THE YEAR 9,018 7,518
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS BN RERERZ
STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED RERREZEEY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 20(a) 9,018 7,518

The notes on pages 68 to 183 form part of these financial

statements.

F68R183E 2 sk AREM BHRcx 2 —7D
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68

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'\

Ehiket EES:

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

New Provenance Everlasting Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange. The Company’s registered
office is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal place of
business in Hong Kong of the Company is located at
Unit 1102, 11/F, Shui On Centre, No. 6-8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries
of the Company are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies (Cap 622) Ordinance. These
consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group are disclosed below.

—REH

WREEZKRERAR (TAAE1) KE
REZMRIAEREERAE HEMH
EEE 2P BT o AR A B 5F i =B R i 7Y
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda’ MA AR ZE AT EE
EM B A BB E(F A EE6-8RIH L F L
114£1102ZF ©

KRB RREER AT - AABHERE
ZEFBEBF BN U FRRMEE300

FEGFHEER

(a) EHEH

I E & RE T IL BT E B A
ERAVBREEL (EBHHRE
EA)) > EEBAECEE S g5t
fAg (EBEsHEMAT)) Bz
FraBERBENEBMBFRESZEL
ERAGHER (HE G &
2R - EAZEERSHRI) &
EBATIEG (F6228) 2 BRI
EHERY ILEEEMBFHRRIN
ReaBHaRZMBMRARE (M
R #Es EmRA] (TEmFRAL)
ZHEANBERTE AEBFTIRMNZ
BAGHBREENR T

~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from the initial application
of these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2022 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements
of each entity in the Group are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
rounded to the nearest thousand except
for per share data. Hong Kong dollar is the
Company'’s functional currency and the Group's
presentation currency.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

FEGHEER (@

(@ AHEBERGE
ERGHMAGEEME TR
RIETEBUBFREER  ZEE
BUHBREENNRAEBRG
B RAER A e 2 5am o M5
3EMERER LT REEST
ZERAIFFS I Z B S BRES
B MR E RSB RER AR
RERERTABEE AR EARER
HRAERR -

(b) HREMFTRRZGREE

BE_T__F#=B=+—HI=E
EZHEEBRREEAATDRE
MEBAT #iBIAER]) o

REFEETEERZIVBREME
BEEDNRAZBREEERET
TERBREZEE (TS
SR LFUBREAUBTER
BERBEN BRATEINESE
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TG RAEE 28REHK-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4 A
Iz i =

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other
factors believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements
and major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 32.

2.

(b)

EEETEER (@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held
by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances,
transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4 A
Iz i =

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the owners of the Company.
Total comprehensive income or expenses of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)
(ii)), unless the investment is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale).

2.

(c)

EEETEER (@)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of
CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent
the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes
and not larger than an operating segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGUs (or group of CGUs)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of the
unit on a pro - rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit (or group
of CGUs). Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. Any
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any
of the CGU within the group of CGUs, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of
an operation within the CGU (or a CGU within
a group of CGUs), the amount of goodwill
disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the CGU)
disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGUs) retained.

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(h)(ii)):

- interests in leasehold land and
buildings where the Group is the
registered owner of the property
interest (see note 2(qg));

- right-of-use assets arising from leases
over leasehold properties where the
Group is not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

- items of plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets arising from leases
of underlying plant and equipment (see
note 2(g)).

2.

(d)

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #Z_ZT - _F=—HA=+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives as follows:
Plant, machinery and  5%-33%

equipment
Furniture and fixtures  20%-25%
Office equipment 20%-33%
Computer equipment  20%-33%
Motor vehicles 20%-30%
Leasehold Over the shorter of
the remaining term
of the lease and the
estimated useful life
of 4 years

improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from
equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All
other repairs and maintenance are recognised
in profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes, which are carried at
cost less any recognised impairment losses.
Cost includes any cost directly attributable to
bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Construction in progress are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
their intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

2.

(e)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination
with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired are
stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date they
are available for use and their estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years

2.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(continued)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal.

Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset, are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses
whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct
the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate non-
lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component for all
leases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability, except for short-term leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less and leases
of low-value assets. When the Group enters
into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease
on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability
is initially recognised at the present value of
the lease payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental
borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the
lease liability is measured at amortised cost
and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the
lease liability and hence are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Leased assets (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability plus any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, and any initial
direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the
cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use asset is
subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see notes
2(e) and 2(h)(ii)), except for the right-of-use
assets related to leasehold land and buildings
where the Group is the registered owner of
the leasehold interest are carried at cost in
accordance with note 2(e).

The lease liability is remeasured when there
is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a
change in the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from
the reassessment of whether the Group will
be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase,
extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to
zero.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Leased assets (continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease
liability is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial
position, the current portion of long-term lease
liabilities is determined as the present value of
contractual payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do
not meet the definition of investment property
in property, plant and equipment and presents
lease liabilities separately in the statement of
financial position.

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs)
on the financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and other
receivables).

Other financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the ECL
assessment.
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NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Credit losses
are measured as the present value of
all expected cash shortfalls (that is, the
difference between the cash flows due
to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets,
trade receivables and other
receivables: effective interest
rate determined at initial
recognition or an approximation
thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into
account reasonable and supportable
information that is available without
undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial instruments

(continued)

Measurement of ECLs (continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the

following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result
from possible default events
within the 12 months after the

reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses
that are expected to result from
all possible default events over
the expected lives of the items
to which the ECL model applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these
financial assets are estimated using a
provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general
economic conditions at the reporting

date.

For all other financial instruments, the
Group recognises a loss allowance equal
to 12-month ECLs unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of
the financial instrument since initial
recognition, in which case the loss
allowance is measured at an amount

equal to lifetime ECLs.
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NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is 90 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #Z_ZT - _F=—HA=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating
results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes
in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability
to meet its obligation to the
Group.

Depending on the nature of the
financial instruments, the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk
is performed on either an individual
basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are
grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.
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NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

MR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Significant increases in credit risk
(continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting
date to reflect changes in the financial
instrument’s credit risk since initial
recognition. Any change in the ECLs
amount is recognised as an impairment
gain or loss in profit or loss. The
Group recognises an impairment gain
or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income
Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(q)(iii) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated
based on the amortised cost (that is,
the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset is
credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income
(continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

significant financial difficulties
of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

it becoming probable that
the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the
technological, market,
economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on
the debtor; or

the disappearance of an active
market for a security because
of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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MR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(1)

(i)

Credit losses from financial instruments
(continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets;

= other intangible asset;

= goodwill;

— deposits and prepayments; and

— investments in subsidiaries in

the Company’s statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #Z_ZT - _F=—HA=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets
that are not yet available for use and
intangible assets that have indefinite
useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable

amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of
the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where
an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent
of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).
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2.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(i)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

Recognition of impairment
losses

An impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss
whenever the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying amount of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value
in use (if determinable).
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #Z_ZT - _F=—HA=+—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h)

(i)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

(continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment (continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill
are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss,
or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been
assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, in the process
of production for such sale or in the term of
materials or supplies to be consumed in the
production process.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average
cost formula and comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

(j)

(k)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs.
The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in
the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration.
A right to receive consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due. If revenue
has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration,
the amount is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less allowance for
credit losses (see note 2(h)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are measured
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy
for borrowing costs (see note 2(s)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(U]

(m)

(n)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
banks and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidated statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for expected
credit losses (ECLs) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(h)(i).

Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.
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2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Employee benefits (continued)

(i)

Equity-settled share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Model,
taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to
the share options, the total estimated
fair value of the share options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of share options expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the share option reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to
the share option reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in
the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised when it is
transferred to the share premium
account or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

Employee benefits (continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided that
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period
as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against
deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority
on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q)

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Group'’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is expected
to be entitled, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more than
12 months, revenue is measured at the present
value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected
in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued
separately under the effective interest method.
Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.
The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and
does not adjust the consideration for any
effects of a significant financing component if
the period of financing is 12 months or less.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing
goods or services to a customer, the Group
determines whether the nature of its promise
is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (that is, the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those
goods or services to be provided by the other
party (that is, the Group is an agent).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is a principal if it controls the
specified good or service before that good or
service is transferred to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance
obligation is to arrange for the provision of
the specified good or service by another party.
In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another
party before that good or service is transferred
to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of
any fee or commission to which it expects to
be entitled in exchange for arranging for the
specified goods or services to be provided by
the other party.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and
accepts the products. If the products
are a partial fulfilment of a contract
covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised
is an appropriate proportion of the total
transaction price under the contract,
allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract
on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

(i) Sale of utilities
Revenue is recognised when utilities are
generated and transmitted.
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NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(q)

Revenue and other income (continued)

Principal versus agent (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues under the effective interest
method using the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset. For
financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For
credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is applied to the
amortised cost (that is, gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset (see note 2(h)(i)).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which
the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and consequently
are effectively recognised in profit or
loss over the useful life of the asset by
way of reduced depreciation expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss, except those arising
from foreign currency borrowings used to
hedge a net investment in a foreign operation
which are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. The transaction
date is the date on which the Group initially
recognises such non-monetary assets or
liabilities. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including
goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign
operations acquired on or after 1 April 2005,
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of a foreign
operation acquired before 1 April 2005 is
translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign
operation.

EEETEER (@)

(v SMEBE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4 A
Iz i =

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that
is, a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in
a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
lost of control over a subsidiary that includes
a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does
not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of
accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that
asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended
or ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use or sale are interrupted or
completed.

2.

(r)

(s)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation

(i)

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group)
is classified as held for sale if it is highly
probable that its carrying amount will
be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and
the asset (or disposal group) is available
for sale in its present condition. A
disposal group is a group of assets to
be disposed of together as a group in a
single transaction, and liabilities directly
associated with those assets that will be
transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a
sale plan involving loss of control of a
subsidiary, all the assets and liabilities
of that subsidiary are classified as held
for sale when the above criteria for
classification as held for sale are met,
regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the
subsidiary after the sale.

iR e M B HRRMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and
discontinued operation (continued)

(1)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

Non-current assets held for sale
(continued)

Immediately before classification as
held for sale, the measurement of the
non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group)
is brought up-to-date in accordance
with the accounting policies before
the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until
disposal, the non-current assets (except
for certain assets as explained below),
or disposal groups, are recognised at
the lower of their carrying amount and
fair value less costs to sell. The principal
exceptions to this measurement policy
so far as the financial statements of the
Group and the Company are concerned
are deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures) and
investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to
be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in note 2.

Impairment losses on initial
classification as held for sale, and on
subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or
loss. As long as a non-current asset is
classified as held for sale, or is included
in a disposal group that is classified as
held for sale, the non-current asset is
not depreciated or amortised.

2. FEEFEE @
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t) Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operation (continued)

(i)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a
component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which
can be clearly distinguished from the
rest of the Group and which represents
a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or
is part of a single co-ordinated plan
to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued
operation occurs upon disposal or when
the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale (see (i) above),
if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is
abandoned.

Where an operation is classified
as discontinued, a single amount
is presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income,
which comprises:

- the post-tax profit or loss of the
discontinued operation; and

- the post-tax gain or loss
recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting
the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FEEHEEK @
(continued)
(u)  Related parties (u) REAL

(i) A person, or a close member of that (i)
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(@) has control or joint control over
the Group;
(b) has significant influence over

the Group; or

() is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group's parent.

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any (ii)
of the following conditions applies:

(@) The entity and the Group are
members of the same group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(b) One entity is an associate
or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group
of which the other entity is a
member).

(c) Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

(d) One entity is a joint venture
of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third
entity.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #Z_ZT - _F=—HA=+—HLEE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(u)

(v)

Related parties (continued)

(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(continued)

(e) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the
Group.

(f) The entity is controlled or
jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(9) A person identified in (i)(a) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(h) The entity or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person
are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with
the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
chief executive officer (the chief operating
decision maker) for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz i =

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

2.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs and HKAS issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA") for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual period beginning on or after 1
January 2021 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
- Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (beyond 30 June
2021)

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Other than the amendment to HKFRS 16, the Group has
not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4., WHmEkDERE

(a)

Revenue (a) &

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue (i)

Disaggregation of revenue from
contracts with customers by major
products is as follows:

W 2 I

REIZEMPHEREHN
Wz dn T -

2022 2021
—E_C ="
HK$’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Continuing operations FESEER
Revenue from contracts ~ HFAMERELENF 15578
with customers within the AZEREHKE
scope of HKFRS 15
Sourcing and sale of metal XEKRIHE TBEY &
minerals and related HERETERR
industrial materials 163,441 492,528
Production and sale of TERBETERER
industrial products 98,788 109,422
262,229 601,950
Disaggregated by BERZMIBMUE DI
geographical location of
customers
- Hong Kong (place of — &% (GEitE)
domicile) - _
- PRC except Hong Kong —HE (HHERIN 262,229 601,950
262,229 601,950

Revenue from the above categories are
recognised at point in time.

R B £t R B B WL i B
I R FEST o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WERDHERS (B8)

(continued)
(a) Revenue (continued) (a) Yzz (48)
(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in (i) FERIR A AR 3R & R
the future arising from contracts with FRBRE B & AIESEZ L
customers in existence at the reporting i)
date
All sales contracts with customers FTEERHESNREA—
are for periods of one year or less. FHURN - MEBHHERS
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the ZERE15SRPT AR BLER T
transaction price allocated to these AETZBEHNEEMAE
contracts for the remaining unsatisfied EREGHNZIRFZERREK
performance obligations is not T LU 25
disclosed.
(b) Segment reporting (b) DEEIRS
The Group manages its businesses by divisions, AEBRDEEEHEZER  MoLE
which are organised by business lines. In a Bl EBFEAEAR - ERERD
manner consistent with the way in which Bo R R IFF A A A& BT EAR &
information is reported internally to the Group'’s (FEEBRRAN) REPERER
chief executive officer (the chief operating ZAEA—E AEEBEM A=
decision maker) for the purposes of resources (EEES =

allocation and performance assessment, the
Group has presented the following three
reportable segments.

(i) Sourcing and sale of metal minerals and (i) REREBEETBREY RE
related industrial materials; RTERN;
(ii) Production and sale of industrial (ii) YERBETERESR &

products; and

(i) ~ Others (i) HAh

Others segment represents business activities HMDBIEUREB SR ETR
and operating segments not separately EERKE N BIEREYRR
reported, including provision of logistics o

services.

The operation of production and sale of utilities YERHEAHAERREFHE
was disposed in the last year. The following E-UTHBEERTBIEEAER
segment information does not include any IERREEFERIE HE S F BN
amounts for the discontinued operation, which 115 o

is described in more detail in note 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s chief executive officer
monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment assets include property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill, other
intangible asset, inventories, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and deferred tax assets of each segment.
Segment liabilities include lease liabilities, trade
payables, accruals, deposits and other payables,
tax payable and deferred tax liabilities of each
segment.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to
the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which
otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit
is gross profit less selling and distribution costs
of each segment.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning segment profits, the chief executive
officer is provided with segment information
concerning revenue, depreciation, finance
costs, income tax expense and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the
segments in their operations. Inter-segment
sales are priced with reference to price charged
to external parties for similar orders.

Wt R EEIRE (48)

(b) SRS (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

Wt R SRS (48)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
Segment results, assets and liabilities TEEEE EBEREE (B)
(continued)
The accounting policies of the operating KE DM G5t BER B 2P it
segments are the same as the Group’s ZAREE 2 G BERAER o
accounting policies described in note 2.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable HE_Z_FRIZEZ—F=A8
segments as provided to the Group’s chief —t+—HIEEFE REFTAERT
executive officer for the purposes of resources BRBIEERD B RT G ERIR
allocation and assessment of segment ZAREBT 2R DB ERFHIN
performance for the years ended 31 March T S
2022 and 2021 are set out below:
Continuing operations FFEARE TS
2022
—E-C
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
FRERHEE
EBBIR YERHE
HRIERY T#RER Hith Mt
HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue RENRAEEZ
from external customers  FI2{R DM 163,441 98,788 - 262,229
Reportable segment profit  AJ 2R 485 360 9,662 - 10,022
Depreciation for property, ~ ¥1¥ BB MR ETE
plant and equipment - (5,357) - (5,357)
Depreciation for RS ETE
right-of-use assets - (6,097) - (6,097)
Finance costs B A - (889) - (889)
Income tax credit/(expense) FriSHiE%,/ () - 1,400 (1) 1,399
Reportable segment assets ] 2 IRHIEE E 374,621 239,949 9 614,579
Additions to non-current  ERREIEREN DB
segment assets during the & E
year - 4,094 - 4,094
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 23k 45 & & (36,404) (59,276) (3,972) (99,652)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

4. WamKkDEHRS (B)

(b) SDERE @
DIEEE EEREE (B)

2021
“E-—F
Sourcing
and sale of
metal
minerals Production
and related and sale of
industrial industrial
materials products Others Total
RERHEE
BRI FERHE
HEIEREY TX£BEEm Hitr st
HKS 000 HKs 000 HKS 000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET
Reportable segment revenue RE/NREEZ
from external customers  FI2ERDE W 492,528 109,422 - 601,950
Reportable segment profit ~ B] 2 R H4EEF| 2,615 7,657 = 10,272
Depreciation for property, ~ #1¥ BB &
plant and equipment REBIWE - (8,130) - (8,130)
Depreciation for right-of-use EFRESEERTE
assets - (5,833) - (5,833)
Finance costs REMAE (40) (1,843) - (1,883)
Income tax expense FrEMmEE - (3,075) 3) (3,078)
Reportable segment assets ]2 RDEE E 663,445 260,629 9 924,083
Additions to non-current  ERHREIERF D
segment assets during BE
the year - 1,227 - 1,227
Reportable segment liabilities 7] 2 IR & & (370,721) (93,764) (3,832) (468,317)

There are no inter-segment sales during the

years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

BHE_Z__FERZZ—F=
B=+—HIFE W& EHH
EO

=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4, WERDHERS (B8)

(continued)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b)
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

SRS (@)
AE2RNAls mi -BE - 8F

profit, assets, liabilities and other items: KREMIBEE 2 HEE
2022 2021
—E_ - - S
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAT
Continuing operations FFRBEE 2T
Revenue Yz
Total reportable segment revenue  B] 2R 5B UL T 42 %8 262,229 601,950
Elimination of inter-segment Eabepak il Ean
revenue - =
Consolidated revenue mEWER 262,229 601,950
Profit A F
Total reportable segment profit REFEBEIINATRZ
derived from the Group’s 2R ERH L8
external customers 10,022 10,272
Other net income Hm A 258 2,057 2,238
Depreciation for right-of-use Rt E D FERAEERFTA
assets of reportable segment ZR2HNEZ
not included in measurement of FREEEINE
segment profit (75) (70)
Reversal of/(loss) allowance on fEUW B 5 mr B[]
trade receivables (B518) & 239 (469)
Reversal of/(loss) allowance on H e srIs#E,
other receivables (B518) B 54 (430)
Impairment loss on deposits & ckIEMRIERERE
and prepayments (2,106) =
Impairment loss on non-controlling FEFEA&HE T BB E5 18
interests (372) (690)
Written down of inventories FEMR (1,682) (2,263)
Loss on deregistration of sFEEMT B A B 518
subsidiaries (384) -
Finance costs =N (889) (1,883)
Unallocated head office and ROPBMERREERE
corporate expenses
— Depreciation for property, —E - -BERZEITE
plant and equipment (90) (657)
- Depreciation for right-of-use —ERREERE
assets - (1,105)
- Staff costs (including directors’ —BIMA (BEESH
emoluments) ) (7,259) (9,349)
- Others —EHAth (6,351) (7,506)
Consolidated loss before taxation 4% & [RHR AT ES 18 (6,836) (11,912)
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4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &

. —

Wt R EEIRE (48)

F=ZA=+—HLEFE

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
2022 2021
—E_C BT
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations FFERE R (B
(continued)
Assets BE
Total reportable segment assets AI2RNEEERE 614,579 924,083
Elimination of inter-segment i > 48 [ e R IE
receivable - -
614,579 924,083
Unallocated head office and RO EMEREREEEE
corporate assets
- Cash and cash equivalents —RERREEEY 9,018 7,518
- Others —HAh 1,422 46,165
Consolidated total assets REBERE 625,019 977,766
Liabilities afE
Total reportable segment liabilities 7] 2 %5 %3 $8 & B 42 28 99,652 468,317
Elimination of inter-segment Eab=bak ElEi N E O]
payable - -
99,652 468,317
Unallocated head office and RORBRMEREREEEE
corporate liabilities
- Others —HAth 3,343 4,113
Consolidated total liabilities NN 102,995 472,430
Other items Hthigg
Depreciation for property, M2 REREEITE
plant and equipment
Reportable segment total A 2RO FELEEE 5,357 8,130
Unallocated head office and RAOBCAR #ﬂ#%&ﬁ&
corporate total EEAERE 90 657
Consolidated total RE4EEE 5,447 8,787
Depreciation for right-of-use assets i FE & Efr &5
Reportable segment total 2RO LELEEE 6,097 5,833
Unallocated head office and KR BcAE #ﬂfﬁ%&?&
corporate total 40 %E - 1,105
Consolidated total rREAEER 6,097 6,938
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4.

Wt R SRS (48)

(continued)
(b)  Segment reporting (continued) (b) DERS @)
2022 2021
—T—C - S
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations R E R (B
(continued)
Other items (continued) HMIEg (&)
Income tax expense PSRRI
Reportable segment total Al 23R D IELEEE 1,399 3,078
Unallocated head office and RO E R
corporate total AR RE - =
Consolidated total R AEEE 1,399 3,078
Additions to non-current segment  FERAREBIEREDIEBEE
assets during the year
Reportable segment total A 2RO LRLLEEE 4,094 1,227
Unallocated head office and RO FCARHIE B K2
corporate total EEAEEE - =
Consolidated total RE4EEE 4,094 1,227
Revenue from major products and services FEEMRREZ W

The following is an analysis of the Group's

UFBAEERBEEEMZ W

revenue from its major products: SaX I
2022 2021
—E== £
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FFEREET
Metal minerals and related industrial <& & &%) 5 A8k T2 /R k)
materials 163,441 492,528
Industrial products TERESR 98,788 109,422
262,229 601,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)
Geographic information

The following is an analysis of geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external
customers; and (ii) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill
and other intangible asset. The geographical
location of customers is based on the location
at which the products were delivered. The
geographical locations of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets is based
on the physical location of the assets under
consideration. In the case of goodwill and other
intangible asset, it is based on the location of
the operation to which they are allocated.

4.

Wt R EEIRE (48)

(b)

DERE (B
B E R

TREIWAEEREIRERZ
Wk ; Re(iAEBYZE - BB KRR
B EREEE BEREMER
BERMEBUEI DA &R
ZBUEDRRINEmZUES]
DeoME-BERREREREER
EZHBUENRBAEREEZ
BERAUES D sl E KEMER
BEM=  AEBERFEDRZKE
EXEGHREMESID -

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RBESIAREBERZWE ERBEE
2022 2021 2022 2021
= T — —EIZfF %
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FET
Continuing FHBIREET
operations
Hong Kong (place of &% (GE 1 EhH)
domicile) - - 2 93
PRC except Hong Kong F T (FA&BRSIN 262,229 601,950 55,404 60,476
262,229 601,950 55,406 60,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

4, REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b)

Segment reporting (continued)

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers contributing 10%

Wt R SRS (48)

(b)

DEEHRE (B)
BT EER ZEN
(HAREEEHETEINI U EZ2E

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

or more of the total sales of the Group are as BT
follows:
2022 2021
= BT
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FET
Continuing operations FHERE T
Customer A (note (i) BEA (WzE0)) 98,788 109,422
Customer B (note (ii)) = BB (faii) - 369,522
Customer C (note (i) B EC (Ka#iii) 49,042 =
Customer D (note (i) ZED (a2 i) 45,472 =
Customer E (note (iii)) = EE (i1 5£ii) 43,416 =
Notes: Wit

iii)

Revenue from the above customer arose
from the businesses of production and sale
of industrial products for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021.

Revenue from the above customer arose from
the business of sourcing and sale of metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the years ended 31 March 2021.

Revenue from the above customers arose
from the business of sourcing and sale metal
minerals and related industrial materials for
the year ended 31 March 2022.

iiii)

BE_T__HFR_FT-_—F
ZA=t+—HLEFE L®HE
BPzWmhREEERBET
EREM-

BE_T_—F£=H=+—H
LEE, bz R 2 Um bRk
BB RIEE S ®EEY 88
TEFERER

BE_T__F#=-H=+—H
EE, EligR 2 WamTh R
BERBRIEESBEY A
TERBES-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

OTHER NET INCOME 5. HMUAFEEE
2022 2021
=S %
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FEREER
Interest income on bank deposits IRITERZF EWA - -
Interest income on loan receivable FEWE R WA 372 354
Total interest income on financial REBIER AT 2 SRHEE
assets measured at amortised cost ZH B U A 4B 5B 372 354
Sundry income IR 2,570 3,401
Net foreign exchange loss PE R 51838 (885) (1,571)
Government grant (note) BT RL (Fat) - 54
2,057 2,238
Note: Mzt -

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group successfully
applied for funding support from the Employment Support
Scheme under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the
Government of HKSAR. The purpose of the funding is to
provide financial support to enterprises to retain their
employees who would otherwise be made redundant. Under
the terms of the grant, the Group is required not to make
redundancies during the subsidy period and to spend all the
funding on paying wages to the employees.

BE_Z_—F=A=+—HLEFE A&EH
MR FEBRERNENEREES TR
ZRMESBESY BRI E - EEZBNAD
FRHEMBSZEUREUEGRENNES
EZBMBGERT 2ERAFERRBFTE
WmEETERERERFEN RS EAR

SEETHE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 6.

PRIR A5 1E

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting) the followings:

BRRATEEENR GIA) THIRE:

2022 2021
—ECCF T
HKS’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations BIREER
(a) Finance costs B & pY S
Bills discount charges ZRANIRE A - 40
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEHE 889 1,846
Total interest expense on financial W IEE R RESTA
liabilities not at fair value through S SHEE
profit or loss Z M Bz 4858 889 1,886
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ BT
emoluments) (B3R EEH)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He TEN
HEF] 22,667 20,921
Contributions to defined contribution EREH IR RT3
retirement plans Z =R 2,822 2,828
25,489 23,749
(c) Other items HtE g
Cost of inventories * FERA! 251,321 590,884
Auditors’ remuneration B EmE B 660 680
Depreciation for property, L/ER Fﬁ?%&
plant and equipment RBITE 5,447 8,787
Depreciation for right-of-use assets FREEEITE 6,097 6,938
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries sHEEM B A Bl B 18 384 -
(Reversal of)/loss allowance on trade FEUS B 5 718
receivables (#[E) /ESTEJ B (239) 469
(Reversal of)/loss allowance on other H fth R
receivables (#[E) /ESTE??H% (54) 430
Impairment loss on deposits and e KRBAR
prepayments AR 2,106 =
Impairment loss on non-controlling JEER R R E
interests 518 372 690
Written down of inventories FEMR 1,682 2,263
Written off of property, plant and R Y4
SCRLRSIS 3015 i 3 158 -
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE -BEK
plant and equipment REZEIE - 172
8 Cost of inventories, being the carrying z FERA BIEEFEZREE) BiF&
amount of inventories sold, included B FERIEI—F=R=+—

HK$26,783,000 (2021: HK$27,793,000)

relating to staff costs and depreciation for
property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets for the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021 which amounts were also included

in the respective total amounts disclosed
separately in notes 6(b) and 6(c) for each of

these types of expenses.

B (S
BT
516(b)K26/(c)

ALtEEERETIMESRYE BE
R 5% #5371 88 LA R {55 F 8 5 226,783,000
T —FT 4 1 27,793,000/87T) ° B
IE7F B RS 2 HEE R 5 A 9 BB B
FT il 88 2 & 184888 o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. EZEEETRZFIER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) FREERZAAEMRE
profit or loss represents:

Continuing operations IS ERER
2022 2021
- - S
HKs’000 HKS000
FHET FET
Current tax AHEATRIE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —&BFER
(note (i) (Hi1zEa)) - =
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") —HE P ZEFFER
(note (ii) (TE2PR15R1)
(Wt &2 i) 967 2,326
967 2,326
(Over)/Under-provision of prior year B EE (BREEIHE)
BHEARE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —BABNER - =
- PRCEIT —RE RS (2,367) 749
Deferred tax FEIEFRIE
Origination and reversal of BREEZEE REE
temporary differences (Hz£24(b)(i))
(note 24(b)(i)) 1 3
Total “ast (1,399) 3,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

7. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REEEZRZEAER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of (a) IFEEERZEARERE . (@)
profit or loss represents: (continued)

Notes: Hiat -

(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided (i) HRAEEHE-S &K
as the Group has no assessable profits for the —E_—F=-RA=+—HIHF
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. FE 0 # 8 SR AR A o A St

REBFER
(i) PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC EIT at (ii) RE B A B HE25% (ZE - —

25% (2021: 25%).

According to a joint circular of the Ministry
of Finance and State Administration of
Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, only the profits
earned by foreign-investment enterprise
prior to 1 January 2008, when distributed to
foreign investors, can be grandfathered and
exempted from withholding tax. Dividend
distributed out of the profits generated
thereafter shall be subject to the EIT at 5% or

& © 25%) BB R E £ 2R
/e

1R 3% B B30 R [ R AR 75 48 = Bk
&8 BN 2008515% »
NELEEREIIRREED
KERZZEZNFE—HF—HAl
BEE 2 m F R B R A AN TR0
Mo ZBHBFAES BANFTD
k2 B& B RIZB25%510% 2 15
EMEERRESR > WHFPE
EiETEM -

10% and withheld by PRC entities.

(iii) The Group is not subject to any taxation (iii) AEBRBE_S__FR_
under the jurisdiction of Bermuda, Samoa, T F=-A=+—HLEE
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands BB ABRE EET S
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021. HENEBRELEHEEZAAE

& AN IR IE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7. REEERZEAER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax (credit)/expense (b) RIE (BR) FAZE G E5ERE
and accounting loss at the applicable tax RAMREHERIBENEER :
rates:

2022 2021
—EBCCF T
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18
- from continuing operations —REFESEER (6,836) (11,912)
— from discontinued operation —REERIEREER - (3,404)
(6,836) (15,316)
Notional tax on loss before FRINAIEIE 2 B RIRNIE
taxation, calculated at the R PTIE 1 2£16.5%
domestic income tax rate of HFE (CE—F:165%)
16.5% (2021: 16.5%) (1,128) (2,527)
Tax effect of non-deductible AR RBEEE
expenses 1,222 3,815
Tax effect of non-taxable income TEFRBAZRBEE (1,452) (1,739)
Effect of different tax rates arising ~ E MR IET A EFTESE
from other tax jurisdictions MEER2FE 477 (103)
Tax losses not recognised RIS 2 MIBEE 1,854 3,314
(Over)/under provision BEEE (BEEm)
in prior years BERE (2,367) 749
Others HAth (5) (431)
Actual tax (credit)/expense EERIE (KR X (1,399) 3,078
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

8. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8. EZM=
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section BERBEEBATMEAIZEI3MERAE (K
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and BESHEER) ROISE28FURENE
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information =M=
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:
2022
g et
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e E2Ek BRI
ik LR AT (e @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTER
Mr. Sin Lik Man ROX5TE
(Chief Executive) (fTEAE%) - 2,760 230 18 3,008
Ms. Sun Le Byt - 1,800 150 18 1,968
Non-executive director EHTES
Ms. Sun Di ezt 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive directors I JFRITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RRMEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wang Ye TEEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Tang Kin Nam HEmTE
(appointed on 1 October 2021) RZBZ—-F
+E—B%ZH) 75 - - - 75
Mr. Wan Johnson Bggkst
(resigned on 25 February 2021 and MRZFEZ—F
with effect from 1 September 2021) “BZt+REET
B-E_—-#NA—-H
itz yi] 63 - - - 63
478 4,560 380 36 5,454
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8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 8. EEE (&)
2021
ZT”—fF
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits
benefits  Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e B K BIREFIGE
ik BMHE [l Al % st
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Sin Lik Man ROX5TE
(Chief Executive) (TTE#%) - 2,760 230 18 3,008
Ms. Sun Le it 3o - 1,800 150 15 1,965
Non-executive director FRTES
Ms. Sun Di gt 50 - - = 50
Independent non-executive directors EiFRITES
Mr. Cheung Ngai Lam RRMEE 240 - - - 240
Mr. Wang Ye TEEE 50 - - - 50
Mr. Wan Johnson EaEEE
(appointed on 1 October 2020 and (/5 2
resigned on 25 February 2021 and +A—BEZFLR_-Z
with effect from 1 September 2021) T—EZB1+hA#
B BIE—F
NA—BREXR) 75 - - - 75
Dr. Ng Tze Kin, David RERET
(resigned on 31 March 2020 and MZBZZE
with effect from 1 October 2020) =B=t+—HB#fFi
BE-Z2-Z£+A-H
REEXN) 289 - - - 289
704 4,560 380 33 5,677

No director of the Company has waived any
emoluments and no emoluments were paid or payable
by the Group to any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group for the years ended
31 March 2022 and 2021.

BE_S-_"GR-B-—H=A=+—
BIEFEE > KRBz % 555 R E AT A
o MAEETERAEMAESSZ A HEN
ERE FREEMARERIMA L
EEFF 52 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz i =

MR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

10.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2021: two) are directors of the Company whose

meEn AL

rEBLRESHFNA LT B (CTF
——F I WmR) ﬁzﬂ-&’&ﬂ%% EM%EE?

emoluments are disclosed in notes 8 and 28. The Mi5E8 K281 B o HEf =% (& —=£EE2 =
aggregate of the emoluments of the remaining three %) REF AT 248 éﬁﬁlﬂ:
(2021: three) individual are as follows:
2022 2021
—EB-CF —ET 4
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYH G 1,760 1,760
Discretionary bonuses IETEAT 146 146
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R KAEF 5t 2 {2 54 54
1,960 1,960
The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals =% (CEI—F =Z2)ReFMALTZ
with the highest emoluments are within the following M=BR T5I4ER :
bands:
2022 2021
—E_— —E 4
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A# A&
HKSnil - HK$500,000 =38 7T £500,00078 7T 1 1
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,00178 7% % 1,000,00078 7T 2 2

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to
any of the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office for the years ended 31 March 2022 and
2021.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

10.

BE_ T KB —F=A=+—
HIEFE > REBEY & B RSHNA
TR A HEMEMBE (FAREMAR
EEFMMARERERF 2 ZENSBERHE o

[:35)

EEEfEBRNVEE_ST _—_FK_F
——HF=ZRB=+—HIEFEZERRE-
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities

On 11 September 2019, the Group entered into a sale
agreement to dispose of entire equity interests in
Ningxia Tianyuan Power Generation Company Limited
(“Power Company”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, which carried out all of the Group’s
operation of production and sale of utilities, at a
consideration of RMB169,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$184,717,000). The disposal was
completed on 16 June 2020. During the year ended
31 March 2021, the Group has received the first to
third part of the consideration of approximately
RMB132,476,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$156,693,000) after deducting income tax as stated
in the sale agreement. On 15 October 2021, the Group
has received the final instalment and overdue interest
of approximately RMB38,554,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$46,459,000) after deducting income
tax as stated in the sale agreement.

11.

ERILEEXET
HELERHEEADERES

RZE—hEhB+—B> xEEFTIiL—
TBHH & ek 1FE AR 1169,000,0007T (18
E1149184,717,0008 T) HEXR AT EE
WBARBEEXTEEARAR (EAHA
Bl HERAERNEMEERBEE AR
EmER 22HRE-HEERZZE
ERATAEBERBR - BEZZT-Z—F=A8
=+ —HIEEE AEBERIZHEER
EAMBZE—ZH =R E MR
BI%B) 89 AR 18132,476,0007T (FEE L
156,693,000/ 7) - R —_E_—F+H+H
B AERCKRIHEHERBRMBZRE—
HA(T A s ER A B (R HBRAT ISR B) A
FS #%38,554,0007T (1H & 12 4946,459,00078
JT) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of

utilities (continued)

The results of the discontinued operation included in

11. BAALEKRSE

HELERHEAAERES (B

TREIFAFNBENSRIEESETR

the loss for the year are set out below. ZEBo
For the period
from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)
TEITE
MAE—HZ
TEITE
~A+7~H
(HEBH)
AR
HKS'000
FAET
Revenue Wz 13,112
Cost of sales 5 & AL A (15,875)
Gross loss Ei8 (2,763)
Administrative expenses THRZ (593)
Loss from operation KEEEE (3,356)
Finance costs =N (48)
Loss before taxation PRI AIES 18 (3,404)
Income tax FRiSH =
Loss after taxation FRIRBES1E (3,404)
Loss on disposal of the subsidiary HEWBARZ
after income tax PRETISM B AR (19,605)
Loss for the period from discontinued KABHBE AEEBRL
operation and attributable to owners of KEXEFHNEE
the Company (23,009)
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of

utilities (continued)

Loss before taxation from discontinued operation

includes the following:

11. B#

BRI
15 .

iR e M B HRRMEE

BE_Z__F=-A=+—HLFE

IHAEE T (8

HELERHEARERES (B

EFRRIRAIBEEEU TR

For the period

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)
“ECRF
mE—B=E
TEIRE
~A+7~H
(HEBH)
HA RS
HKS'000
FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBZFE 48
Salaries, wages and other benefits ey TEREMET 1,862
Contributions to defined contribution EREMFUR ARG 8 Z =R
retirement plans 628
Staff costs B TI4 2,490
Cost of inventories * EE A 15,875
Depreciation for property, plant and ME- -BEREBITE
equipment 2,811
Depreciation for right-of-use assets EREEERE 773
3,584
Written off of property, M2 ~ R 5 e 5% S
plant and equipment 421
¢ Cost of inventories, being the carrying amount of 9 FEMA (AMEEFEZREME) SF
inventories sold, included HK$6,039,000 relating —ECZFNB—BEZSEFRA

to staff costs, depreciation for property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets for the period from
1 April 2020 to 16 June 2020 (date of disposal) which
amounts were also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these

types of expenses.

+/B (HEBH) ABMZERETIR
S YE - -BEAKBUREREEE
6,039,000/ 70 BRFMIBINE 5T AT
BZERZERDIRER FX 2B
4azar o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11.
(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities (continued)

BRIEEEETR (8

HELERHEAAERES (B

For the period

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)
TEIZE
mMA—H=
TEIIE
~A+7~H
(HEBH)
AR
HKS'000
FAET
Cash flows from discontinued operation RHEB&RILEEEEHN
HERE
Net cash generated from RERE TN ZIREFER
operating activities 878
Net cash generated from investing activities R E&Z & &g 2 RS B
(for the period from 1 April 2020 to (CE2EZZ2FMA—HZE
16 June 2020 (date of disposal) includes —EFEFA+H (HEBHE)
an inflow of HK$52,438,000 from R EEHERB AT
the disposal of the subsidiary) 2 A52,438,0007 7T) 52,438
Net cash used in financing activities BB EE RSP (825)
Net increase in cash generated REME AR IR EIE N FERE
by a subsidiary 52,491
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #Z_ZT - _F=—HA=+—HLEE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11.

(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of
utilities (continued)

BRIEEEER (B)

HELERHEARERES (B

For the period
from 1 April
2020 to

16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)

it ot
mA—H=
BT
7~A+7<H
(HEBH)
HARE

Loss per share SREE
Basic and diluted, from discontinued
operation
(HK cent per share)

<<<M¥§k
€= =711)

The calculations of basic and diluted loss per share
from discontinued operation are based on:

BARREE REBEKLE

(0.109)

EBRIEEEXEZ I BREFREBHEBIRT
BEFETIIRIEFE !

For the period

from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)
—ETEH
mA—H=
—EEHF
~B+7~H
(HEBH)
HARE
Loss attributable to owners of KABHEB NELBE&LE
the Company from discontinued KEEB 18
operation (HKS’000) (F3E7T) (23,009)
Weighted average number of ordinary BRI EERELRR
shares in issue during the year used in the #SHEE 2 FRE 81T
basic and diluted loss per share LB T IaE
calculation (note 25(b)) (HizE25(b)) 21,084,072,140
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE_ZT_——

11.

F=ZA=+—HLEFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION 11. BRLEKEEH (8)
(continued)
Disposal of operation of production and sale of HELERHEARAERER (B
utilities (continued)
Details of the disposal of the subsidiary HENBRASZHE
For the period
from 1 April
2020 to
16 June 2020
(date of
disposal)
TERITE
mE—HE
TERITE
~A+7~H
(HEBH)
AR
HKS'000
FAET
Consideration received or receivable: BRI E -

Cash R 184,717
Total disposal consideration HENRBRE 184,717
Carrying amount of net assets sold BHESEFEZREE (183,923)
Gain on disposal before income tax and FRETS AT B D4

reclassification of foreign exchange EERERAZHE KR

differences 794
Reclassification of foreign exchange BEMNEERER

differences (17,422)
Income tax expense PSR (2,977)
Loss on disposal after income tax FRATGI B 2 M ER1E (19,605)
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11.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION
(continued)

Disposal of operation of production and sale of

utilities (continued)

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities as at the

date of disposal (16 June 2020) were:

11. BARIEKEERE (&)

HELERHEARERES (B

EERBGEREERR (CE-ZFXA
+738) ZIREES !

16 June 2020

TEIRE

~A+7~H

HKS'000

FAET

Property, plant and equipment MESBE R E 139,302
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,864
Inventories 78 3,920
Trade receivables [EWE Z 718 55,911
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FETFRIE ~ <8 Je A R IR IS 17,580
Cash and cash equivalents HERIREEEY 36
Total assets BEEE 220,613
Trade payables B E 5 FIE (9,514)
Accruals, deposits and other payables EstE R B R EME A RIE (23,169)
Lease liabilities HE&E (4,007)
Total liabilities SREHEES (36,690)
Net assets BESE 183,923
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

12. LOSS PER SHARE 12.

a) Basic loss per share
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the
loss for the year attributable to owners of the

BikEE

a)

BRENREBE

RERBIEDRBEARBEA A
BEENBEGRUEREETER

Company by the weighted average number of RGN I BT & -
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2022 2021
—ECCF BT
Continuing operations KBRS T
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable to KABHEEB A
owners of the Company B EANEE
(HK$’000) (F&7) (5,452) (14,898)
Number of shares K EE
Weighted average number of BEITEBER
ordinary shares in issue MHEFIHE 21,084,072,140  21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share BREXEE
(HK cent per share) L= (0.026) (0.071)
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12. LOSS PER SHARE (continued)

a)

b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

Basic loss per share (continued)

12. TREIE (@)

a) BREXHEIE (@

BHE_ T "F=—HA=+—HILEFE

2022 2021
—EICHF 2T
Discontinued operation BARIEEEEF
Loss 518
Loss for the year attributable KABHEE A
to owners of the Company FE(EFE IR
(HK$000) (F3E7) - (23,009)
Number of shares K EE
Weighted average number of BETEBER
ordinary shares in issue MEFIHE 21,084,072,140  21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share BREXNEE
(HK cent per share) 6=25=3/11)) - (0.109)
Continuing and discontinued FEREXER R
operations BRI
Loss E518
Loss for the year attributable KNAE R AFEL
to owners of the Company FANEE
(HK$'000) (FE7) (5,452) (37,907)
Number of shares &
Weighted average number of BETEER
ordinary shares in issue N#E I 21,084,072,140  21,084,072,140
Basic loss per share SREXREE
(HK cent per share) =593/ (0.026) (0.180)

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021 is the same as the basic
loss per share as there is no potential ordinary
shares outstanding during the years.

b) SREBEEE

BARERTEEEZEREKRT
EoHwEE_ZT -
EZA=+—HLEEEER#E

ERIE—

BRESREREEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz i =

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

13.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income.
The contributions from each of the employer and
employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per
month and thereafter contributions are voluntary.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution
state-managed retirement benefit scheme. The
employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit
scheme operated by the government of PRC. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is
to make the specified contributions.

13.

B SR AEF

FEESBRBEEBEBEONEEMER
EERBEBRFMERBZSERA > 2
HHEHEBESSHERFIMEATBESE (T2
BEst8l)) RBTFEIA—ERBILE
SE A BRI E MR IRET B - RIFRE
B BEREEHBEREERRM
5%Z R BB FHER - EEIREESH
ZHAREE EIRAE F1,500%8 7w Hi2P] B
FEMR > 5t8) Z fERBI SR ©

AEET2E-—BERERMZEXEER
HREMNE - AEBZFENBRAEEE
9 7% F R B B 48 2 B SR E IR AR IR AR A
SEIZHE - ZEMB AT AR IENAE
ZIEB D LERBRIRER FHEI MR R
BRAR KRB E - AEEFRIKEF 5B
ZH—BEEFHIEE MR
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14.

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

—=— —

— =

F=ZRB=+—HLEE

o =L
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME- -BER=E
Property, plant and equipment (a) ME--BERZE
Plant, Furniture Construction
machinery and and Office Computer Motor Leasehold in
equipment fixtures equipment  equipment vehicles  improvements progress Total
HE Rk HEnz
#E  GRRRE HAZRE BliRf RE 1 fRIE /i
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
&7 AT AT TEn AT AT FAT &1
Cost 72
At1 April 2020 RZZZTEMA-H 60,883 919 1561 D) 874 3654 4358 73181
Additions HE 287 - - - - - 940 1201
Disposal & 6) (487) 87) 6) - (3.359) - (3944)
Effect of foreign curency  SNEEREEZ¥E
exchange differences 5072 % 114 6 73 2% 393 5,707
A3 March2021and - RZE--E=B=1-HE
1 April 2021 “%"-£mA-A 66,236 456 1,588 933 947 320 5,691 76171
Additions HE 1,626 - 7 - - - 2461 4,09
Transfer from CIP HEIEEA 2,898 - 389 - - - (3,287) -
Disposal HE (1,449) - - - - - - (1,449)
Effect of foreign curency  SNEEREEZ7¥2
exchange differences 2,845 13 68 3 40 14 229 3212
At 31 March 2022 RIEZZEZR=1-H 72,156 469 2,052 936 987 334 5,094 82,028
Accumulated depreciation E3HFE R
and impairment
At1 April 2020 RZZZTEMA-H 30,165 6% ) 670 874 3007 - 36402
Charge for the year FENR 772 67 416 191 = 391 = 8787
Elimination on disposal ~ RHE ) (345) (62) B) - (3359) = (3772
Effect of foreign curency  SMEEREZ 772
exchange differences 2762 % 86 5 73 2 - 2952
At31March2021and KB —-F=B=f-BR
1 April 2021 “3”-£mA-A 40,646 40 1432 863 %7 4 - 44,369
Charge for the year EEMA 5253 15 n 66 - 3 - 5,447
Elimination on disposal ~ *tHE (1,291) - - - - - - (1,291)
Effect of foreign curency  SNEEREE7¥2
exchange difference 1,776 14 58 3 40 2 - 1,893
At31 March 2022 RZB-_#=A=+-A 46,384 469 1,567 932 987 79 - 50418
Carrying amounts KEfE
At 31 March 2022 RIB2ZZE=B=1-H 25,112 - 485 4 - 255 5,094 31,610
At31 March 2021 RZB_-%#=A=+-H 25590 16 156 10 - m 5,691 31,802
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BER=E (&)
(continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (b) FERAEEE
The analysis of the net book value of right- ZiEAEERRNSI D 2 FRAREE
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is as REFEZ2MAOT :
follows:
2022 2021
—ECCF ZET
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Ownership interests in leasehold FEERBEE T RIEFW
land and buildings held for own mAEERED RITERE
use, carried at depreciated cost FIER) > FIERFEER % -
with remaining lease term of:
- Between 21 and 39 years ——t+—FE=+NE
(2021: between 22 and 40 years) (B —F:
“+Em+F) 3,426 3,359
Other leasehold land and buildings Efth B AHEE Lt KRigF
leased for own use, carried at (2T E R A5 BR)
depreciated cost 20,370 25,408
23,796 28,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ME-BER=E (&)
(continued)
(b)  Right-of-use assets (continued) (b) FEREEE @
The analysis of expense items in relation to RiBm P A EAERMN 1A
leases recognised in profit or loss is as follows: BzAHmAT :
2022 2021
- £
HKS$’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Depreciation charge for right-of-use 1% 1BREE E4BH ) H 2
assets by class of underlying asset: fFAEEEZINELH !
Ownership interests in leasehold HETHREFH
land and building R EER 75 70
Other leasehold land and buildings Efth B AHEE Lt KiEF
leased for own use 6,022 6,868
6,097 6,938
Interest on lease liabilities HMESGHE Bite())
(note 6(a)) 889 1,846
Expense relating to short-term leases £248 HAFH & & Fl &R FE 47
and other leases with remaining RERN 2 AIAERN
lease term ending on or before HAERHNMAZ
end of the year 700 740
During the year, no additions to right-of-use FRITERAEFEAREE (ZF
assets (2021: HK$25,790,000). ——1%F 125,790,000/ 7T) °
The total cash outflow for leases in 2022 was A ZEZFHENRERHE

HK$6,885,000 (2021: HK$7,245,000).
7,245,0005 7T) ©

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is set
out in note 23. 23°

¥8756,885,000/8 70 (ZE - —F !

HE S BRI B DA &M
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

15. GOODWILL 15. HE
2022 2021
- £
HKS’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Cost s
At beginning and at end of the year REDRER 5,368 5,368
Accumulated impairment loss REtiREREE
At beginning and at end of the year REDRER (5,368) (5,368)
Carrying amount IREE - -
Others segment: Hithor4a :
For purposes of impairment testing, goodwill had BEANRMS  mENRSRIREE
been allocated to a CGU which is principally engaged BN (EFEREBRPENREYRE
in logistics businesses comprising warehousing, HoOERE - BRAERER)  HitA
transportation and cargo handling in Hong Kong HMABIET -BIEER A BLBEEY
and PRC, and included under others segment. The MERABRAE (TBEEEYR) kE
management considered Shing Kee International WEAR RS EEYRAE CRI) BRA
Logistics Holdings Limited (“SKIL") together with its g (TR Bkl (M T CEBRY RE
subsidiary, Shing Kee Sea-land Logistics & Warehousing ) BOEBEZRESEEEM HHAR
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (literally translation of fzC /8 BRAZHE R EE R A o

A CFRYI) BIR/AE]) (“Sealand”) (collectively the
“SKIL Group”) is the CGU for allocation of goodwill as
synergies are derived in such arrangement.
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16.

17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSET

16. HithEREE

BHE_ T "F=—HA=+—HILEFE

Customer
relationship
TR %
HKS'000
FAET
Cost D%
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, 1 April RIZEZZEFMA—H -T2 —%F
2021 and 31 March 2022 —B=FT—H-ZFEZ—FmOA—HK
—FE__H#=H=+—H 4,202

Accumulated amortisation and
impairment
At 1 April 2020, 31 March 2021, 1 April
2021 and 31 March 2022

Carrying amount
At 31 March 2022

At 31 March 2021

Rt R RE
RIETZFEMNA—H - —4F

ZB=+—B- & _—FWB—HK
- _#=H=+—H

IREIE
KRB _HF=B=+—H

R ZET-F=R=+—H

4,202

INVENTORIES 17. =F&8

2022 2021
g —E—

HK$’000 HKS'000
FHET FHET
Raw materials B 1,416 41
Finished goods B 56,137 31,234
57,553 31,275

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as

ERSRAX L ARD 2 FEREZ DM

an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: W

2022 2021
—E”C —E"—

HKs’000 HKS000
FET FAET
Carrying amount of inventories sold BEEFEEZREE 251,321 590,884
Written down of inventories FEMUR 1,682 2,263
253,003 593,147
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. EWREZHE
2022 2021
—EB-CF —ET 4
HKs’000 HKS'000
FET FAET
Trade receivables FEUNE 5 =18 100,340 520,927
Less: Loss allowance B EERE (1,420) (1,664)
98,920 519,263

All of the trade receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Note:
Ageing analysis
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

trade receivables based on the invoice date or shipment date
and net of loss allowance is as follows:

FRERWE ZRIERRRK AR —FRI
BB

BRE DA

NFAREBEHRRERANESEHHET
Z W E SR (FIRRESREE) ZRE D

2022 2021

ZEICZH T

HK$'000 HKS'000

FET FHETT

0 - 60 days 0Z60H 56,928 26,277
61 - 120 days 61£2120H 9,106 23,909
121 - 180 days 1212180H 18,836 91,256
181 - 360 days 181F360H 14,050 351,096
Over 360 days 88360 H - 26,725
98,920 519,263

Trade receivables are usually due within 360 days (2021: 360
days) from invoice date or shipment date. Further details on
the Group’s credit policy and credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in note 27(a).

BREZHIEEE AN EZHBENESHBRE
51360H (ZZ ——4F : 360H) A fFo RERE S
ERXREERNESRBEBEENEERR Z &
— SRR M E27(a) ©
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

FAfTRRIE 2 R H th B R IE

2022 2021
—E-_F =4
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Amount due from a non-controlling interest [& W IE1% BG 18 &5 =18
(note (a)) (K1t (@) 7,624 7,252
Other receivables HthpE s =Ia 786 64,273
Trade deposits paid (note (d)) BB ST (#aE ) 402,992 293,121
Other deposits and prepayments HitiZzE RFANRIEB 2,952 2,300
Other tax prepayments (note (c)) HhFaLRIB B2 ) 200 194
Less: Loss allowance (notes (a) and (b)) B EEIREE (WAt Em)) (10,472) (8,040)
404,082 359,100
Analysed for reporting purposes as: MERENDTA -
Current assets mENE E 404,082 359,100
Non-current assets ERBEE - -
404,082 359,100
Notes: Mzt -
(a) The amount is secured by the shares in certain private (a) FELUZEREAEMRILZIAAT

limited companies incorporated in Hong Kong, one of
which being SKIL, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group. It was interest-bearing at 5.01% per annum
and was due on 30 September 2017.

As at 31 March 2022, the balance is past due and
impairment allowance of HK$7,624,000 (2021:
HK$7,252,000) is provided.

RATZROEEIEF Hp—fEAX
EEFEENBRAEBLEEY R -8
RAAIBIRERK5.01%:t 8 RBR -2
—tENB=+HER-

R B __F=ZA=+—H &Hea

FRE 5H4R R (B B 57,624,0008 T (ZF
— —4F :7,252,000587T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4 A
Iz i =

19.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

Notes: (continued)

(b)

19. FAMRRIA - #ERHEMEWRIAE

RECEIVABLES (continued) (#&)
Kt o (48
Impairment of other receivables (b) HAFEWRIB Z B E

Impairment losses in respect of other receivables
are recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is
remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against other receivables directly (see note 2(h)).

BRAEMEWRIE 2 HERBELER
BEIRECER  PRIFASE B EMUKE A R
IR 2 FISE MR BUAE R R - LB
T BEBE S BRI E M EWRIE
(RKysE2(h)) ©

Movements in the loss allowance ESiE 8RR > BE)

2022 2021

—EF T

Note HKS$’000 HKS'000
izt FHET FAET

At beginning of the year KA 8,040 6,888

Impairment allowance BEREREDRERE

recognised to profit or loss (i) 2,424 1,120

Exchange adjustment PE R aAEE 8 32

At end of the year REXR (i) 10,472 8,040

Note: MisE -

(i) At 31 March 2022, loss allowance in respect (i) RZE__F#=HA=+—H">
of other receivables of the Group including AREBCRIZEBEAERE
amount due from a non-controlling FE W TR I8 (6D +E FE WL JF 12 i% #E
interest, other receivables and deposits and TmanIE s HhpE I U &%
prepayments amounting to HK$10,472,000 EREMARE) ZHEEEEGS
(2021: HK$8,040,000) were recognised by the 10,472,000 (2 - —4F .
Group. The major impaired receivables were 8,040,000/ 7T) c EARBEZE
outstanding for over 1 year at the end of the W IBE AR RS R E B —
reporting period and were due from a non- FE LU R e ¥ B B R
controlling interest with financial difficulties. ZIEERR R A TS o

The other tax prepayments represent the prepaid () HMEARIEIEPEBMNIEER > Hof

value-added tax in PRC which can be utilised to offset
the value-added tax payable arising from the future
sales of the subsidiaries operating in PRC.

At 31 March 2022, trade deposits of HK$402,992,000 (d)
(2021: HK$293,121,000) were paid by the Group to

the suppliers for secure the procurement volume and

purchase of merchandise and raw materials which

can be recognised as purchases after the year end

date upon the delivery of the merchandise and raw

materials to the Group.

At 31 March 2022, an impairment loss on trade
deposits approximately HK$2,106,000 (2021: Nil) has
been recognised.

RERHEETEEE B AR R REK
ETHEMELE Z BMIBER -

RIEBE_—_F=H=+—H &~&E£EE
THER B 5 % $£402,992,0008 7T (—
T —4F 293,121,000/ 7T) » LUFEIRER
BERBESYERREME ArE5EA
RAEER N EMREMNEEELEH
BB AIRBRE

RIEBE__H#=RB=+—H BEIE
S¥es 2 B EE1E%92,106,0008 7T (Z
T —F . F)o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 20, RERFEEFEYREMRER

OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION EEH
(a) Cash and cash equivalents (a) RERREEEY
2022 2021
—EBCCF =4
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Cash at banks and on hand RIT R FHEIAE 9,018 7,518
Cash and cash equivalents in the ReEMBRRRKR
consolidated statement of financial #R&EIREREBEBRZ
position and the consolidated HERIBEEEY
statement of cash flows 9,018 7,518
Note: et -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on SRITIRSREHBITERMNEZ F&HF)
daily bank deposit rates. REEF S o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

20. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOWS INFORMATION

(continued)

financing activities

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

20.

REkREFENMRAEMBEER

EEN (@

(b) RBEEBRELEEEZHIER

Bank
advances
for
Lease discounted
liabilities bills Total
$R1TARIR
HEAaR IR “azt
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
FAET FET FAET
(note 23)
(#15%23)
At 1 April 2020 MR- _TF
meE—H 752 - 752
Changes from financing MERSREEH
cash flows (7,245) 1,110 (6,135)
Exchange adjustments PE R aE %L 693 (1,110) 417)
Addition NE 25,790 - 25,790
Interest expense MERXZ 1,846 = 1,846
At 31 March 2021 andat RIZZEZ—4
1 April 2021 =A=+—HK
B
mA—H 21,836 - 21,836
Changes from financing MERERELH
cash flows (6,885) - (6,885)
Exchange adjustments PE 2 S 834 - 834
Interest expense MEMZ 889 - 889
At 31 March 2022 .S
=B=+—H 16,674 - 16,674
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

TRADE PAYABLES 21. BHESNRIEA
2022 2021
k- 2 BT —fF
HK$’000 HKS000
FAET FAET
Trade payables FET B S8 45,840 409,568
Notes: Mt -
(a) Trade payables are expected to be settled within one (@) BB ZRIBRAFN —FEREERE-
year.

(b) Ageing analysis

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date

or shipment date is as follows:

(b) SRl D AT

TR B SRS

HAg&EEH

22BN EZRIRZRE DI

2022 2021
—EC BT

HK$'000 HKS'000

F#ET FAET

0 - 60 days 0E60H 40,522 15,490
61 - 120 days 61Z120H 570 19,061
121 - 180 days 12121804 86 74,212
181 - 360 days 18123604 24 295,168
Over 360 days BE360H 4,638 5,637
45,840 409,568
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

22.

23.

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

22. BFER BRERAMEMRIEA

PAYABLES
2022 2021
—ECCF ZET
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R H e 718 37,451 35,773

Note:

All of the accruals and other payables are expected to be

Mt -

st ERREMENRER

AR —FEA

settled or recognised as income within one year or are BB RWARREREER

repayable on demand.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At 31 March 2022 and 2021, the lease liabilities were

repayable as follows:

23. HE&E

RoE-_—EFER-_E-—F=g=+—

H EOESEEE0T :

2022 2021

o St =
Present value Total Present value Total
of minimum minimum of minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments lease payments lease payments
RIEHEE RIEHE REHE RIEEE
ARRE NEEEEE RFEE NEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FA7 Fi#7 47 FA7
Within 1 year —FR 1,063 1,746 1393 1676
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERER 6,531 6,986 5,760 6,703
After 2 years but within 5 years WERBRER 9,080 9,315 14,683 15,640
16,674 18,047 21,836 24,019
Less: total future interest expenses L RIRF B AR (1,373) (2,183)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEERE 16,674 21,836
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24.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24. REMBRRARZFAER
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) FERBIKRRZAHRIESS !
statement of financial position represents:
2022 2021
T - S
HKs’000 HKS'000
FHET FAET
Continuing operations FHBIRE T
At beginning of the year TR AT 5,187 3,982
Provision for the year REEEE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&BREM (Hfzt7()) - -
- PRCEIT (notes 7(a)) — BT IR
(15t 7(a)) 967 2,326
______%7 mEEEES
(Over)/under-provision in respect ~ BEEE (BEEREME)
of prior years BERR
- Hong Kong Profits Tax (note 7(a)) —&BFEHR (H5t7(a) - -
- PRC EIT (notes 7(a)) — Rl RPN
(Hat7(a)) (2,367) 749
(2361 749
Income tax paid FRENPTER
during the year
- Hong Kong Profits Tax —&BFER - =
- PRCEIT —E R EFRISIR (1,006) (2,228)
_____(ooe) (2,228)
Effect of foreign currency exchange ERZEREZ FE
differences 183 358
At end of the year REXR 2,964 5,187
Representing: K= :
Tax recoverable A Y [EIFR I8 - =
Tax payable FETIRIE 2,964 5,187
At end of the year MRER 2,964 5,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
Iz i =

24.

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(b)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities

recognised

(i)

The components of deferred tax
assets and liabilities recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position and the movements during the
year are as follows:

mAaMBRARZEARFR (@)

(b) CHRIVEERFREERER

(0]

Depreciation

TR MBI R RS2
BRERBEEREEED
RN ERBEEHMT

Depreciation

allowances in excess
in excess of related
of related depreciation
depreciation allowances Total
e rEEB
TR MR RA T ES
HERA T ES RHEE “ast
Deferred tax arising from: HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000
EEMIERE : FET FHET FHET
Continuing operations FaREER
At 1 April 2020 R B EFE
B—H 66 (44) 22
Charged to profit or loss NEBER
(note 7(a)) (Htzt7(a)) - 3 3
At 31 March 2021 and RIZZ—%F
1 April 2021 =H=+—H
B —F
mA—H 66 (41) 25
Charged to profit or loss MNkrE18E:E
(note 7(a)) (Hizt7(a)) - 1 1
At 31 March 2022 I —
=B=+—H 66 (40) 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

24. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24. REMBRRARZAER (@)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ERFDELEREEERAR (B)
recognised (continued)
(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated (i) REMBRRREER .

statement of financial position:

2022 2021
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Continuing operations FHBIRE T
Deferred tax assets RiFE MR RER 2 IR
recognised in the LERIEE =
consolidated statement of
financial position (40) (41)
Deferred tax liabilities RiFE MR RER 2 IR
recognised in the LERIEEE
consolidated statement of
financial position 66 66
26 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

4 A
Iz i =

24.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$76,973,000 (2021: HK$63,490,000)
and HK$13,214,000 (2021: HK$43,051,000)
available for offset against future profits that
may be carried forward indefinitely and with
expiry date of within 5 years, respectively.
No deferred tax assets have been recognised
in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax
is imposed on dividends declared in respect
of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1
January 2008 onwards.

At 31 March 2022, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to HK$81,301,000
(2021: HK$56,703,000). Deferred tax liabilities
of HK$4,065,000 (2021: HK$2,835,000) have
not been recognised in respect of the tax that
would be payable on the distribution of these
retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable
future.

24,

n/\

(c)

(d)

BMBRRARZAER (&)

KRIEDIRIERIEE E
RZE__—&E=B=+—H =&
EEXEFARIEE1E76,973,00078
7T (CZF——4 :63,490,00078 7T)
$213,214,0008 7T (Z & - —4F :
43,051,000/ 75) 7] A LUIE 88 R 2 i
o pRl AR EERAEERIEA
FE A FHE o B HS AR BETR B A 2K i %IJ
TR AU 2R Tk R TE 5 18 58 4R ST
RIBEE-

REER ZIBEREE R
RIBEREEZEPRSRE > IR R
BABN _EENE—A—AMNE
PREREN 2 im A Bk Z B B AR TR
A

RIEZ-F=H=+—H8> &
B AT XRD IR @F HRE > G E
%B7481,301,00058 7T (ZE - —4 !
56,703,000/ 75) © IR AN A B4
ZEWB AT ZREBR ) HlA
&Eﬁﬁmmﬁwki%ﬁ’\‘ﬁjﬁﬁ%
)U’Etlj%,ﬁwlﬁ'ﬁji,.ﬁfﬁi)fﬁz
#/m%'JZFETTmIEEE iIE JEFR 1B
&154,065,0008 70 (Z T - —4 !
2,835,00058 7T) ©
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(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

FEMBHRRME
BHE_ T H#=-B=+—HIFE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 25. RAER#E
The reconciliation between the opening and (@) AEBGEERSAME DR FL]
closing balances of each component of the RERERZHRAN IR o
Group's consolidated equity is set out in the R oA RBEZERERARIB O
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FYERFRZ SEFFUWT ¢
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
Share Share Merger Capital Contributed Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve surplus losses Total
ke RAEE AfEE  ESHE  BABRR  RHEH ELEy
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 000
FEm TEm TEn 7E1 i TEm TEn
At1 April 2020 RIZ-EEMB-A 417 41,970 (152) 7851 31960 (21,697) 62,779
Loss for the year FEERR - - - - - (7,984) (7,984)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AEE2EHTAE
for the year - - - - - (7,984) (7,984)
At 31 March 2021 RIE--%=F=1+-H 4217 4,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (29,681) 54,795
At 1 April 2021 RZE_—£RA—A 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (29,681) 54,795
Loss for the year TEEFS - - - - - (11,873) (11,873)
Total comprehensive expenses ~ AEE2EH AR
for the year - - - - - (11,873) (11,873)
At 31 March 2022 RIZZZE=A=+-H 4217 41,970 (1,522) 7,851 31,960 (41,554) 2,922
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25. KERi#E (@&
(b)  Share capital (b) K&
2022 2021
-g-z- ——
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEE E RHEE £
HK$'000 HKS000
THER FAET
Authorised: B
Atthe beginningand atthe  IRENRER
end of the year (ordinary (SIREE0.0002ETT
shares of HK$0.0002 each) 2 E &) 500,000,000,000 100,000 500,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.00028T
HK$0.0002 each LER
Atthe beginningand atthe  RENRER
end of the year 21,084,072,140 4,217 21,084,072,140 4217
The owner of ordinary shares are entitled to ZEREE AAEIEIITEEIRZ
receive dividends as declared from time to R TAEREATAE 7S
time and are entitled to one vote per share at BEME—ZE-FrEZS@EKRIN AR
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares SR GEENEEZEE RS

rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) RECERER
(i) Share premium 0 RS E

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies
Act”) and Bye-laws of the Company.

(i) Merger reserve (ii)

On 6 January 2003, the Company
became the holding company of the
companies then comprising the Group
pursuant to a group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”)
at the time of listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange. The
merger reserve of the Group represents
the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of a former
subsidiary of the Company acquired
pursuant to the Group Reorganisation
and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &

25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iv)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the fair value
adjustment on the amounts due to
the former ultimate holding company
and the former immediate holding
company at initial recognition, deemed
capital contribution from the former
immediate holding company on the
date of extension of repayment and
waiver of amount due to the former
ultimate holding company.

Statutory reserves

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
certain PRC subsidiaries in the Group
are required to appropriate not less
than 10% of their profit after tax to the
statutory reserve until such reserve
reaches 50% of their registered capital.
Transfers to this reserve must be made
before distribution of dividends to
shareholders.

Pursuant to applicable PRC regulations,
PRC subsidiaries in the Group engaged
in business involving the prescribed
dangerous goods are required to
appropriate certain of their profit,
calculated based on regressive rate
ranging from 0.5% to 4% applied
on the revenue of that entity, to the
statutory reserve. This specific reserve
can be utilised when expenses or
capital expenditures on production
safety measures are incurred. The
amount of this reserve utilised would be
transferred from the reserve account to
retained profits.

iR MBS R R M EE

E_E__F=HA=+—HILEFE

25. REREHE @)

(0 RHEEERRBZ (@

(iii)

(iv)

B

BEARRBERR D BN
FE AT Al & R IE IR A B e Al
ERERABDMEBZAR
BZRBE - RNERERAH
WERAEERERATZ
B R B o FE A A B AR

IRABRIA

A E

RBEBEROPEENR A&
BzETHENBARR
1 ELBRIR B A R D1 10%
BELZERFE BEELS
EEEZEMEDRZ50%%
k- ARMBELAR BRE
DRI SR E A o

RIFE AN PEER A&
EREVIREAEGKRDE
KU ENB AR BRE
RZERWAERNS%E
A% REXGFTHENE TR
MBI BELEHB %2
RENEEEZREBHE
ERETHEART HEET U
A -ZHEECSHRESER
FAEIRELERE A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

4 A
Iz i =

25.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(v) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the
Company at the end of the reporting
period represented the credit arising
from the transfer of the share premium
account of the Company to the
contributed surplus account of the
Company as reduced by amounts
transferred from the contributed
surplus account of the Company to
set off the accumulated losses of the
Company.

(vi) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The
reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy set out in note
2(r).

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the
directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure
through new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

25.

AR (R (8)

(c)

(d)

HEHEERAR (&)

)  BEHEE
REBEEHR AR ZES
BEFIERFHAE QT RN &
BRBEEARTDEHR
BRIRFTEEZ ERETRR B
FEREEAATDERAE
BRARPT 8 B A LUR S A A
B REHBIEZ R

i) EREHE

EREESEMERBRE
BINEHZ M BREME
EZERE R - LR
SE2AnNPRE &5t BUREIE

HAEE
AEMERHERNENABBE
B B 2 P M A T 10 BR R
FEENEERTHECE [
BEBERHERABR ALK
B S0 BUB B R o

FABEREMRATBEEREF
MBI —HD > BEEZRBELRK
TR EEB/ERERZ AR R
EFER AEEBEBETNR
KB E B0 AR S 1T R st AR Bl 3R
ERR LT HHEBEEARE-

AT R EEMANE AR RESE
SNFREFBEINEY B AR EFR IR o
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25. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 25.

(d)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

Capital management (continued) (d)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is total borrowings divided by
equity plus total borrowings. Equity represents
equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratio as at the end of the reporting
periods is as follows:

RRA R ()

BEAEE (@)
rEBEREEARGBL X BIEE
ERUEDMEEES) EREX-
BmisAREHEA A GEE 1N
BRERRZEERGBLEROT

2022 2021

—BECCF BT —fF

HK$’000 HKS'000

FAET FAET

Total borrowings wEE - =
Equity attributable to owners of the ZSAF A A FE(EHER

Company 531,077 514,171

Equity and total borrowings EmNEEE 531,077 514,171

Gearing ratio BEEAMEBLE Nil Nil

=z =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
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MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

26.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The existing share option scheme of the Company
(the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 27 August 2012 for the purpose
of providing incentives to eligible participants and
the previous share option scheme of the Company
adopted on 6 January 2003 was terminated on the
same date. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
the Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of ten years commencing on the date of
adoption. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future development
and expansion of the Group. The Share Option Scheme
shall provide incentive to encourage participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and allow the participants to enjoy the results
of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions. Eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme include any individual being an employee,
officer, agent, consultant or representatives of any
member of the Group (including any executive or non-
executive director of any member of the Group) who,
as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion,
has made valuable contribution to the business of the
Group based on his/her performance and/or years of
service, or is regarded to be a valuable human resource
of the Group based on his/her working experience,
knowledge in the industry and other relevant factors.
The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within thirty days from the date of grant, provided that
no such grant shall be open for acceptance after the
expiry of the period of ten years commencing on the
adoption date of the Share Option Scheme or after
the Share Option Scheme has been terminated. The
amount payable by each grantee of options to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of
options is HK$1.00.

26.

REGHURMARRZRIS

RAABR_E—C—FENBZ+tHETZ
ANBREBERT ERMEIBEIERE
& (TS  UBEERSHEE
RESEBTREAREER ST =F—
BN B4 2 Bl BB IR E St B o BRIEHW 5E 5
o 1Es] 0 & R BB AR HE St B 45 R BR 4 B HARE
ST EEESREN - BRESE 2B
HREANEBARS| - HEEHEE 7 8
Z2REAREBRABZEBRIERMES
NoBRENEBIRHEER SEHSHEE
AERAEAZBEELEREARE ) 1R
BHEDNZRNBBBHEZE N RER
MIEZHRR - BRESE EERS A
EORETMNEARNERTAKRERATZE
E-SHEE RE - ERNAX (8FK
EETARERAT ZEARTHIENTE
B AL MESEAREBEAEMALTZRE
B/ SREEH 2HENEECHE S
NEBZERFHRBEEER NIREERE
A2 TEZR  =RAH&XEMERR
EREANEBZBEEANE RO BHE
R BN R B =+ H R
49 M BEHE R B AR A 5T B R AR B HAE
T EHRE MBS BRI WA LR
TEEN - SLBREARASEHNZSY
BREZENENAAR ZE5E41.008

IT ©
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26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MBS R R M EE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise
of options under the Share Option Scheme shall be
a price determined by the Board and notified to the
relevant participant at the time of grant of the options
(subject to any adjustments made pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme and the relevant provisions of
the Listing Rules) made to (subject to acceptance by)
the participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the date on
which the option is granted, which date must be a
business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date on which the option is granted; and (iii) the
nominal value of the share. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and such other terms and conditions upon
which an option was granted, at any time during the
option period after the option has been granted by the
Board but in any event, not longer than ten years from
the date of grant.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant, together with all options granted and to
be granted to him/her under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company within the 12-month
period immediately preceding the proposed date of
grant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) shall not exceed 1% of the total number of
the shares in issue as at the proposed date of grant.
Any further grant of options to a participant in excess
of the 1% limit shall be subject to the approval of the
Company'’s shareholders with such participant and his/
her associates abstaining from voting.

26.
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26.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The limit on the total number of the shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company (excluding lapsed and cancelled options)
must not exceed 30% of the total number of the shares
in issue from time to time. In addition, the total number
of the shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
together with all options to be granted under any other
share option scheme(s) of the Company (excluding
lapsed options), must not represent more than 10% of
the total number of the shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”) or as at the date of approval of the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit as the case may be.
As at 31 March 2022, the total number of shares of the
Company available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,085,407,210 shares.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company and is settled gross
in shares.

26.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

27. ERMITAEZHBERAKREERAR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 8
INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s major financial instruments include the AEBZFETHTAGREFNEIE .
followings:
Categories of financial instruments ERTHEZ 485
2022 2021
—EBCCF =4
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Financial assets EMEE
Trade receivables FEW B 5 TR 18 98,920 519,263
Amount due from a non-controlling interest [& W JE12 BG 18 75 =N I8 K2
and other receivables H e =18 399 63,485
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 9,018 7,518
Financial assets at amortised cost FRRIE AT 2E Y SR E E 108,337 590,266
Financial liabilities EHaE
Trade payables FET B S8 45,840 409,568
Accruals and other payables FEST & A R H e T8 37,451 35,773
Lease liabilities HEAE 16,674 21,836
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BMIHR AT IR SR EE 99,965 467,177

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
the respective notes. The main risks arising from the
Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity
risk, interest rate risk and currency risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures

to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a

timely and effective manner.

(a) Credit risk

(a)

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty

will default on its contractual obligations

resulting in financial loss to the Group. The

Group's credit risk is primarily attributable

to trade receivables. The Group’s exposure

to credit risk arising from cash and

cash equivalents is limited because the

counterparties are banks with a minimum credit

rating of BBB assigned by Bloomberg, for which

the Group considers to have low credit risk.

EERE

TR T EFBERARMETIRE A& H
TMITEEEZFZARBEERR A
HETRAR FXRERBAERERE BB
BEZFRBZEREN TX -EEES
EEEKAEEZEZAR  UERERRE
R BUE E HE I o

FERBEXZHFEREGNE

EMERAER

EN

EMBRRZA

BoAEHEERBRIERBRE
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RREEEMZEERRER
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27.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

(a)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables

The Group has established a credit risk
management policy under which individual
credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and
take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are usually due within 360
days from the invoice date or shipment date.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk in industries or countries in which the
customers operate. Significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At
the end of the reporting period, 44.2% (2021:
71.3%) and 86.5% (2021: 100%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group's
largest trade debtor and the three largest trade
debtors respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group's
different customer bases.

27.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about
the Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for

trade receivables:

27.

BHE_ T "F=—HA=+—HILEFE

TMIAZHBRBREERAR

& (@

(a) SE AR (&)
FEWE 5B (B
TREHEANRAERZEERRMU
KREWEZREZRRAEERRE !

2022
—E-C

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHARSHEE IREAEE EiaRE
% HK$’000 HK$’000
% FAET FAET
Current (not past due) BRHR (R#A1HR) 0.55-0.64 57,261 333
1-30 days past due BHAI1ZE30H 0.64 9,164 58
31-60 days past due BHA31E60H 0.64 10,597 67
61-90 days past due #HI61Z290H 0.64 8,359 53
More than 90 days past due 71 HB90H 0.64-1.00 14,959 909
100,340 1,420

2021

B —F

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAESIE X RE4RE PSEi=bedic]
% HKS’000 HK$'000
% FET FET
Current (not past due) BRHR (GR#A1HR) 0.13-0.22 412,263 572
1-30 days past due BHAI1ZE30H 0.22 8,955 19
31-60 days past due BHA31E60H 0.22 9,210 20
61-90 days past due #HA61290H 0.22 7,935 17
More than 90 days past due  71EE90H 0.22-1.00 82,564 1,036
520,927 1,664
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

Receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to customers that had a
good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believed that
no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had been
no significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

Movement in the loss allowance account in

TMIAZHBREBREERAR
& (@

(a)

SE AR (&)

RHBEXDEARBEFENER
BEER BHZSLERMFERRER
DU BR A W B2 FE 52 BB BRI A RO A
AR~ B AT AR T B A £ [ R UL
RIBFRATAERRNKERRNE
EZERNESR-

B E R R E 2 EURIER R
HAEEBEAEREFEALSEZE
F-REEEER EEEARE
Az LR st iR E AR E R
}_I%f,\%ﬁ%ﬁm%ﬁ&iﬂ mm
ZE R IRAR AR 28k o] -

MW E ZRIEHR 2 BRI IR

respect of trade receivables during the year is MRAFEEZEEWMT -
as follows:
2022 2021
—ECCF —ET—F
HK$’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET
Balance at beginning of the year R ER) 2 AR 1,664 1,095
(Reversal of )/impairment losses RASERE (BE) HRz
recognised during the year BB TE (239) 469
Exchange adjustment bE O E R R (5) 100
Balance at end of the year RERZ MR 1,420 1,664
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TMIAZHBRBREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)  Liquidity risk (b) REBEZRME
The cash management policy of the Group AEEZREEEBRRBEURE
includes short-term investment of cash BRETRIPARE UKEGER
surpluses and raising of loans to cover expected FEMEsREFTE - AEBZEEK
cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly AERSERBATAEATHESS
monitor its current and expected liquidity ERETBELFZ 2B UER
requirements and its compliance with lending HEFEH 2 HEHEBERREERE
covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient BEE TR Z A HENE ) LUEN
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines HIEPERIARHESE R AE
of funding from major institutions to meet BREBERNES RIBITTRRES
its liquidity requirements in the short and HEHRshEtszEEZRR
long term. The Group relies on its liquid funds
and bank advances as significant sources of
liquidity.
The following tables set out the remaining TREFASEBNIETESHER
contractual maturities at the end of the R|EARZBG TEOEEBER
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative ThIRIBESARMIBIRESR (B1ER
financial liabilities, which are based on BEAFEY MaFE) RREH
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including FAZERMNEABEZNENR &
interest payments computed using contractual AEBARERENRZEFEBHE
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the Ho
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
2022
St
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amount
BEX  R—%h  —FmE  CEEf B
HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
FET FAT FET FET FET
Non-derivative financial FEiTEERaE:
liabilities:
Trade payables ENESHE - 45,840 - - 45,840 45,840
Accruals and other payables Bt B R REMBMIIE - 37451 - - 37451 37,451
Lease liabilities HE&E - 1746 6,986 9,315 18,047 16,674
- 85,037 6,986 9315 101,338 99,965
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27.

(b)

(c)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EMITAZUHERABERERAD
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL =€)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) (b) HEBEZEARK (@)
2021
&
Total
contractual
Within undiscounted Carrying
On demand 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years cash flow amount
BHRER
BER R—FA —EmE ERE BeRERB RmEE
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
FET FET FET FET FAET FET
Non-derivative financial EfiESHaE:
liabilities:
Trade payables EBNESZHE - 409,568 - - 409,568 409,568
Accruals and other payables st B R REMBMIIE - 35,773 - - 35,773 35,773
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,676 6,703 15,640 24,019 21,836
= 447,017 6,703 15,640 469,360 467,177
Interest rate risk (c) F 2= & 2
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value FERRIE—EHEMTAEZANE

or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group is exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
bank balances (see note 20(a) for details) and
fair value interest rate risk mainly in relation to
fixed-rate amount due from a non-controlling
interest (see note 19(a) for details).

Interest rate risks are managed by the Group by
maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed
and variable rate financial instruments.

‘E%)&ﬁ%iﬁ%lﬁ%ﬂ%@@]ﬁﬁ
ijﬁ/)i@JZﬂB°°°$$@?t§¥
TH5eR (GFIB R MYEE20(a)) 7¥<§*iﬁ
EMENXRER > kEEMEWE
%’“Hx’f& 2 ERRIE (FF18 R &E
a)) o
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ABEGZERKRFEEMIA
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TMIAZHBRBREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 5% (2021: 5%) in interest
rates for variable-rate financial instruments,
with all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s loss
after tax and the increased/decreased Group's
retained profits by approximately HK$450,000
(2021: decreased/increased the Group’s loss
after tax and the increased/decreased the
Group’s retained profits by approximately
HK$375,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate bank balances. Other components
of the Group’s consolidated equity would not
change in response to the general increase/
decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 5% (2021: 5%) increase/decrease
in interest rates is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2021.

(c) MR (&)
R E T
RZEBE-__#=B=+—0814st
WEEEMTEFIREE A/
TPE5% (B —4F . 5%) MAA

MBEERLD N RSER R
BB 3w Al 180, i/ 49450,00078 7T

T —F  AEEZBREE
BRI IR A E B R EEF)
#0780 49375,0008 ) 0 T B
FRRAEEFfEY 2 FERTE
BRAR . AEBGEE T 2 HthAl
RED A G AFREE EH T
F IR EEH) -

SR E D T IR RS AR
FRIASZAZRBET - DIFER
REHARKEESH T ANBELSE
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EMTHZMBRAKREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL & (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

(d)  Currency risk (d) EEER
(i) Exposure to currency risk (i) BrRZ 2 B IR R
The Group is exposed to currency risk AEBFEREEEEM

primarily through sales and purchases
which give rise to receivables, payables
and cash and cash equivalents that are
denominated in a foreign currency, that

AXERRER EHEES
EELSMNE BN Z AR
BIMEEEUINZEHE)
sHE Z FEWGRIA ~ FE Y TR IR

is, a currency other than the functional RIRERIREEEY B
currency of the operations to which rEEABzZEBMUETR
the transactions relate. The currencies ANREBEAFZ AEBBIER
giving rise to this risk are primarily US$ ERREZ AW :

and RMB. The Group manages this risk

as follows:

Recognised assets and liabilities ERIEERE®E

In respect of other assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies,
the Group closely monitors the net
exposure and will enter into forward
foreign exchange contracts to hedge
against the Group’s currency exposure
it considered necessary.

The following details the Group's
exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposure
are shown in HKS, translated using the
spot rates at the end of the reporting
period. Differences resulting from the
translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations into the Group’s
presentation currency are excluded.

U SEZHEMEE
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HRSMNE & 49 0 AU S BB
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BENEEAZRZEKR
RoMEREM FIAZRA
R LELBITES BT
RARSHARZRITESR
TE - REINEFR MR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e M B HRRMEE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. EMTHZHMBRAKREERAR

AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 8
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(&)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) BERE @)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) (i) RS Z IR (&)
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in HK$)
SME LR (B TTEITR)
2022 2021

ZEIZH S
uss RMB Uss RMB
E7T AR¥ 7 AR
HKS$000 HK$"000 HKS 000 HKS000
FET FET FET FET
Trade receivables e E B 35,254 - 370,439 -
Other receivables HinEmE - - - 43,349
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 845 208 1,909 3,476
Trade payables ENE57E (35,820) - (369,702) =

Net exposure arising from recognised BRAEEKRSEMELE

assets and liabilities Z BB 279 208 2,646 46,825
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

27.

MR M

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

—=——

— ==

F=ZA=+—HLEFE

27. ERMTAEZHBERAKREERAR
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL =]

(&)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) BERE @)
(i) Sensitivity analysis (ii) BRHEZHT
The following tables indicate the TRETHAEERRRS
instantaneous change in the Group’s HAREAZEKNERE 2 EXR
(loss)/profit after tax (and retained REBEBEAESE  REM
profits) that would arise if foreign BEHEHMEBHERTE K&
exchange rates to which the Group ErfE (B8 Oah (&
has significant exposure at the end REBEM) 2BDRFEB) o3
of the reporting period had changed LEMmE > 8P EE{BTHEE
at that date, assuming all other risk TZHEEXRAIERET
variables remained constant. In this DHMEKEBES 2
respect, it is assumed that the pegged AEHMZRNERTEE
rate between the HK$ and the US$ EEF (FR) snsm e
would not be materially affected by FraT b ob s R EE B RS
any changes in movement in value of ZIMEEBE KA ESIEHIR
the US$ against other currencies. The 2B B21E) 28R ELE
increase/(decrease) in foreign exchange o
rates of 5% represents the sensitivity
rate of management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible strengthening/
(weakening) of the foreign currency
against the functional currencies of the
group entities.
2022 2021
kSt —ERF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (Decrease)/  Increase/ (decrease) (Decrease)/ Increase/
in foreign increase  (decrease) in foreign increase  (decrease)
exchange inloss inretained  exchange inloss in retained
rates after tax profits rates after tax profits
Bie REEN Btk REBEA
BELA B8 ED) wm  EXEA BEED) &M
/ (FH) JEm /@Y /(TR JEm /D)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FAET FAT FET FET
RMB AR 5% (10) 10 5% (2:341) 2,341
(5%) 10 (10) (5%) 2,341 (2,341)
Us$ e 5% (14) 14 5% (132) 132
(5%) 14 (14) (5%) 132 (132)
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TMIAZHBRBREERAR
& (@

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27.
AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d)  Currency risk (continued) (d) EERER (@)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued) (ii) @UE‘—EE oW ()
Results of the analysis as presented RPN DTS
in the above table represent an REZEEERUZTED

aggregation of the instantaneous
effects on each of the group entities’
profit or loss after tax and equity
measured in the respective functional
currencies, translated into HKS$ at the
exchange rate ruling at the end of
the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been
determined assuming that the change
in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency
risk at the end of the reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2021.

In management’s opinion, the

REERFEZRREET
‘ZIEE?EEUF& & {Y B B 52 2
MBE DR SRR Z R
ERME R ABTEY]

BRED LB REEN
BHEEAREMTER
EERREHPRMIFES
7S5 E m BRSNS RS Y &
MTAMEBETE -BEOTE
BM_T " —FHFZEE
#EiTo

MEE DIL:‘% EEEAL/(%TE@J

sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative BEzEaEEBETREMNEH
of the inherent foreign exchange risk HhZFINERE XSS
because the exposure at the end of RUBE > BRNREHAR
the reporting period does not reflect B’Jﬂﬁ"\ﬂfﬂiﬁﬁ?ﬁlﬂ 1 &
the exposure during the year, at the b U E DT AR
US$ denominated liabilities are with &5 B S B LBz

different maturity dates and the
changes in foreign exchange rates may
not be steady throughout the year.
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AR M B R R MY 5

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

28.

29.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into the following material

related party transactions:

28. EARBAEALRS

Key management personnel compensation FTEEE A S H

All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for
them during directorship is disclosed in note 8 and
total remuneration for them (including amounts paid to

them as employee of the Group prior to appointment ) AT

as directors) in the year as follows:

REBMEFTULTHNERFAEALRS !

FIETEEEABOREAABZESE K
EREREFHE WS ENH e E
RBRERFANZMEE (BEEZES
EFECHERAERREENTRENS

2022 2021
B F T
HKs’000 HKS'000
FAET FAET

Salaries and other short-term employee e REMEIAREE G
benefits 5,418 5,644
Post-employment benefits BERi B ET 36 33
5,454 5,677

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note

6(b)). Ao
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. BARKIE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the R

end of the reporting period but not recognised as BARMZWT

liabilities is as follows:

2022
—-——

—_—=——

HK$’000
FET

M4z E st A TE IR A (RMFEE6(b))

SHIRI I EHAEERBEBZER

2021
T
HK$'000
TAET

Property, plant and equipment

Y E RN T ] -

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT



30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 &

iR MBS R R M EE

E_E__F=HA=+—HILEFE

SUBSIDIARIES 30. MIEBAR

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RIS —FE=A=+—HZFERBA

March 2022: T :

Place of
establishment or Particulars of
incorporation/ Class of issued and Attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary business shares held  paid up capital equity interest activities
R ML,
WEAE%E e BREN  BREOTRBERSZHE FEfb R A i TEREH
2022 2021
ZIEIZE 3%

Indirectly held

MERE

China Mining Industrial Import &  Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2021: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of
Export Company Limited metal minerals and

related industrial
materials

HEBFELOEZERAT &8 2@ 1R&H REREELRER

CBZ-F1kEMH) MRIEETLER
#

Global Metal Industrial Company ~ Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2021: 1 share) 100% 100%  Sourcing and sale of

Limited metal minerals and
related industrial
materials

ENEBEEERAT e ] 1R RERHEETER

CBZ-FkkH) MREBIER
#

New Provenance Everlasting Hong Kong Ordinary 1 share (2021: 1 share) 100% 100%  Provision of
Management Company Limited management

services

MRBIEERERAF &8 ZiE 330 REHEERE

CBZ-FkER)

EREBRRERR PRC Registered ~ RMB77,365,215 100% 100%  Production and
afBERRAE (2021: RMB77,365,215) sale of industrial
(literally translated as “Ningxia products
Huaxia Integrated Waste
Recycling Company Limited")

(note) (fiz2)
el At AEH77,365.2157 LERBETXA
CB=-F: Em
AR H77,365,2157)

Note:
owned enterprise.

Registered under the laws of PRC as wholly-foreign-

Ktat -

RIBETBEBIZEMAIEEERE-
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

31. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 31. AREBEZMBRRER
FINANCIAL POSITION
2022 2021
—ECCF BT —F
Note HKs’000 HKS'000
Mzt FAET FAET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBABZIRE - =
Current assets MEEE
Prepayments, deposits and AN RIBE B M E A FE
other receivables W IB 84,434 130,740
Cash and cash equivalents HERIBEEEY 7,137 4,574
91,571 135,314
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals, deposits and other st &R s R EAME
payables IFRIE 48,649 80,519
Net assets BEEFE 42,922 54,795
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ZNAT A AEILER
the Company
Share capital 5% 25(b) 4,217 4217
Reserves B 38,705 50,578
Total equity R 42,922 54,795
32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 32. gEtlhEtRHIER
JUDGEMENTS
(a) Critical accounting judgements (a) FEEEHHIER
Impairment of financial assets THEERE
The loss allowance for financial assets are TRBEGERBEEENHENR
based on assumptions about risk of default and B RFEHBIERZBEMatE R
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement ERTEHZERR MEZEREST
in making these assumptions and selecting the BN AGR REBRAEEMNEL
inputs to the impairment calculation, based B RBEmSBREURN&EREH
on the Group’s past history, existing market 2R Y A B M (i A 1T K B o RA SRR
conditions as well as forward looking estimates FRPTRE A EFIERERM 27
at the end of each reporting period. Details Z R o

of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in the tables in note 27.

1 76 NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions
concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

(i)

Estimated impairment of non-financial
assets

Determining whether there is an
impairment requires an estimation
of recoverable amounts of the non-
financial assets or the respective CGU in
which the non-financial assets belong,
which is the higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal. If there
is any indication that an asset may be
impaired, recoverable amount shall be
estimated for individual asset. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of the individual asset, the
Group shall determine the recoverable
amount of the CGU to which the asset
belongs. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise
from the assets or CGUs and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The discount rate
represents a rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows or the revision
of estimated future cash flows are less
than original estimated future cash flow,
a material impairment loss may arise.

32.

(b)

iR e M B HRRMEE

B _HF=HA=+—HLHEE

B EHE S R AR (@)

St A RERRZ T ERIR

UTF#mIRBBZEEZRR

» LUK

REBSHERERIEERN T —E
PREEARBEEKREBREEF
RERRFBEZERERZ THEER

RZHMEERR
(i) FEMEEZ GG AE

EERSFELRERBMG
sTERFEMEENIFS
MEEMBRREELES
fiiz ] UREl& %8 > BIE AR E
BEAMEBBRLEREZ
ReE WA ERBFRER
—IEE E D fERE  BIZERL
& 5l & E b 5t H o] W Bl &
oM AREMETENEEZ
PIUR[ElE &8 B AR EEEEE
TEEMBREELEN
2 ol [el& %8 o E AAEES
BEERKEE G TBERE
TEERAEENREESL
%'fiz;’i;ﬁfﬁﬁ/mi&m
Bz ARGt EIRE B
HWEDRBRIBEEWIZHE
2 B [ 8 /e R A BB R 2R 3R

EMEMS2EERTER
ME’J&T cBBEMRAKREKRE
mMEBHE M RKRRE
82 DR 2R Al 5 A9 AR 2R
HWERE > AREELEK
BB ETIE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

32. ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 32.
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (b)
(continued)

(i) Provision of ECL for trade receivables (i)

Trade receivables with significant
balances and credit-impaired are
assessed for ECL individually. In
addition, the Group uses practical
expedient in estimating ECL on trade
receivables which are not assessed
individually using a provision matrix.
The provision rates are based on days
past due as groupings of various
debtors taking into consideration the
Group’s historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is
reasonable and supportable available
without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are reassessed
and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to
changes in estimates. The information
about the ECL and the Group's trade
receivables are disclosed in note 18.

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT

B EHE S R AR (@)

St A RERRZ ETERIE (B)

BWE G F B2 BRI E
BTIR

FEBRBBFGEREX
BEE#LEEEREZEK
BoMEZARESRE-
Sh AEERBERER
FAMLE I EER B AR
FEEEETENEWNE SR
B AREEBE BHEX
BEREEHAERZ 8
R TEEEAERZ
BEEENXRRERBEN
KA ERZ &3E
RZFMHRETEERNEZRF
HeoREHREHH ~&H
BEMTEELHEREN
R E BRI EEERNZE
G

TEREEEERBE M
ZEHEBEHRHE -BRATE
HEEBEBRAEEEW
B S RIE 2 BRI ER K
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32.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 # &

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(i)

(iv)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories
is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and
the estimated cost necessary to make
the sale. These estimates are based on
the current market conditions and the
historical experience of selling products
of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of changes in
customer preferences and competitor
actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting
period.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account
the estimated residual values. The
management reviews the estimated
useful lives and the residual values
of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment regularly in order to
determine the amount of depreciation
charge for the year. The useful lives
and the residual values are based on
the Group’s historical experience with
similar assets and taking into account
anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation charge for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

32.

iR MBS R R M EE

B _HF=HA=+—HLHEE

B EHE S R AR (@)

(b)

St A RERRZ ETERIE (B)

(iii)

(iv)

FEZA ﬁﬁ}%@

FENAEFEFESNAE
EEGBRETNMGLFEE
1 BR & 51 52 A BY Bl 25 Kz 85
BRI - ZE M5
VEE=3 NI=R:IR Y & )
FHERELEEERZE
B HefEEZ R E 7o
RHEFHFERERIENTT
FEBMELNITEMH
REANE BEEENSR
SHIREMT R EMET

HE

ME BB RREEE RS
SHRIBREER  BREENG
stRAIE A ERUBERER
E-EEEEHERLEE
ZWME BB k& FEOGE
Bl A HA R R R (B (B U
REFENESE-ARY
ERFHRRGEEERDE
RAEEHENEENS
ERBIL - WEE BTET
KM o B EE
RERNE AR RAE
TEXHERARE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Iz i =

32.

MR M

FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E " _"F=HF=+—HIEEE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(v)

Determining the lease term

As explained in policy note 2(g), the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term.
In determining the lease term at the
commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable
by the Group, the Group evaluates
the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account
all relevant facts and circumstances
that create an economic incentive
for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasehold
improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to
the Group’s operation. The lease term
is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s
control. Any increase or decrease in the
lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years

32.

B EHE S R AR (@)

(b)

St A RERRZ ETERIE (B)

(v)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(vi)

Income tax

The subsidiaries of the Company are
subject to income taxes, including
capital gain tax, if any, in Hong Kong
and PRC. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many
transactions for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the financial period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences are recognised as
management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact
the recognition of deferred tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such
estimates are changed.

32.

gt st R iR (&)

(b)

St A RERRZ ETERIE (B)

i) HER

/NI RV DN =
EAKRTEFRSHR BFE
FIZER WIAH)  BIREFR
"REFEFAFEEKRH
- ABXEHBRETEFE
HEHERRRBREEFHE
FEERNENRZ - HZE
EFENERRRBERAR
MARKNEZERE A AR
ERRBTEFLEZREN
Bt 75 AR 81 B9 BN AR 7% 18 Ko IR
SERRIBR S ©

HEEER B EH DI A RRIE
AR P B ZE YR ER
B RD B S T By 2 2R AR R 2 MR AE
PRSMEBEE - HMBARRRSLEA
A RIERERSEERRGE
MBS EB AP ZIEERIEER
ERFISIRSZE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR M B RRITE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #ZE T - _F=—FA=+—HLEE

33. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
and a new standard which are not yet effective for
the year ended 31 March 2022 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements. These
developments include the following which may be

relevant to the Group.

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)"

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies'

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred tax related to assets
and liabilities arising from a
single transaction’

Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

33.

BE_T__g=A=+—HIL
FEEMEMERNRERZIEST
¢:%J$U&%ﬁﬂ%§$2

5"\/E

BEZSYHRRTELS EB 56
AEEBEMBINBE_ZT__F=1
=+ —BLEEEHRERRERNZ S
BRI ZEFT R 5] R o 2 F %
REETEEAEEABN TR

EBMBREZER R A RABRERT
B175

EAMBREEDE3  HESESLARL
SRZAEET A

EBMBREZER CEEEABRENT
BIORREEEE DEEREZEZ
8552858 2 1E5T & BEEHERIE

EAGHERFITRZ
(CHEN

Hé},@\fﬁ/ﬁ; \\\\\ /)\L@]Y
FERB UK EER
BESR (T2

&) WABRAET &
ERAGHERNE IR SEEEEE
IR REBUHR
mﬁﬁ\aff“’\i
F258
EBEENESH Y BIAEFAZER'
(TR
EBEHENE2R RE—XZMELZ
(TR BEERBEBEMERZ
FELERIE
ERGHEREI6R . ME-BRERZE—
(TR BERRAIRPIE
IE
ERAGERERy BEEUESHN-BITE
(TR A R A2
ERAMBREEN IEVBRSELZ
(TR - N\FEZZZ
T A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORTHE YEARENDED 31 MARCH 2022 #E_ZE__"F=F=+—HIEEE

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2021 (continued)

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined

The directors anticipate that the application of the
above new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The outbreak of coronavirus disease (COVID-19)
continued to bring about additional uncertainties in
the Group’s operating environment and may impact
the Group’s operations and financial position. The
Group has been closely monitoring the impact of the
pandemic on the Group’s business and will take all
necessary and appropriate measures to reduce the
impact of the pandemic on the Group’s business. Based
on the information currently available, the Directors
confirm that there has been no material adverse
change in the financial or trading position of the Group
since the end of the reporting period and up to the
date of this annual report.

33.

34.

#E_T_—F=H=+—HL
FEEEMERRERZIEST
el ER R RRBRAIGEEE Z

=& (@

' RIE_=F—RB—Hsz&HEBZF

ERBAE

2 i —— ey = R = b At 1 S
EEIE £

3 REEB#MNzERBZFERBEN

EER ER LRI REBYHBRS
ER Z BT AR BRI G HES
MHRRENEATE

HREHREER

¥ AU 5 AR 5 B (COVID-19) IR B 45 48 A 7
EERERIETRELAEE M WA
BRI AREBHCERHERT  RER—
HEVSGEZEEBEHAEBEBNEETF
KBV E KRB BIELUREE B A
EENFE-RERFIEZEN  EF
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFEMBRE

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=t+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E--fF T "E-FTF “T-HEFE "T-)N\E
HK$’000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000 HKS$ 000
FET FET FET FET FAET
(restated) (restated)
(B%) (B8
RESULTS e
Revenue from continuing operations HEREEB R 262,229 601,950 481,124 1,113,468 2,225,944
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB E R A
from continuing operations (1) /&R (6,836) (11,912) (2,429) (76,961) 274,689
Income tax from continuing operations FHEREEBHMER 1,399 (3,078) (3:418) (4,237) (50,012)
(Loss)/profit for the year NEREERER
from continuing operations (&18) /&H (5,437) (14,990) (5,847) (81,198) 224,677
Non-controlling interests RIS (15) 92 452 322 (338)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners of AREER ANRLEE
the Company for the year (8538) /& Fl
- from continuing operations —REFEREER (5,452) (14,898) (5,395) (80,876) 224339
- from discontinued operation —REBRIEEEEK - (23,009) (11,503) 10,526 9,299
(5,452) (37,907) (16,898) (70,350) 233,638
At 31 March
R=ZBA=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
k- et 2T IZZIZFE ZZ-NAF IZB)\E
HK$'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000
FET FAET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHGE
Total assets BEME 625,019 977,766 806,880 1,038,764 3,449,563
Total liabilities BELH (102,995) (472,430) (321,128) (487,655)  (2,775,384)
Non-controlling interests R 9,053 8,835 8319 8,227 8,264
531,077 514,171 494,071 559,336 682,443
Equity attributable to owners of KRB R NEL#E R
the Company 531,077 514,171 494,071 559,336 682,443

NEW PROVENANCE EVERLASTING HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥iEEEIZEIREREAT
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